Public Document Pack
You can view the agenda
online by using a smart
phone
camera
and
scanning the code below:

AGENDA
for a
MEETING OF THE CABINET
Tuesday, 6 October 2020 at 2.00 pm
Virtual Meeting
Contact Officer:

Linden Vernon Email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
or Tel: 01538 395613

Membership
Councillors:S. Ralphs MBE
M. Deaville
M. Bowen
T. Hall
J. Porter
S. Scalise
E. Wain

Leader of the Council (Chair)
Leisure and Sports (Deputy Leader)
Communities
Customer Services
Climate Change and Biodiversity
Environment
Planning, Development and Property

Reports enclosed unless noted otherwise.
1.

Apologies

2.

Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated) (Pages 3 - 6)

3.

Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)

4.

Declarations of Interest, if any
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

5.

Matters referred by an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, if any
P.T.O.

www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Tel: 0345 605 3010

A G E N D A (Continued)

6.

Items requested by Cabinet and/or Non-Cabinet Members in accordance with
Cabinet Procedure Rules 8.5(b) and (e), if any

7.

Reports of Monitoring Officer and/or Chief Finance Officer, if any

8.

Forward Plan (Pages 7 - 18)

9.

Leader

10.

9 .1

First Quarter 2020/21 Financial, Performance & Procurement Report (Pages
19 - 60)

9 .2

Revised Performance Framework 2020/21due to COVID (Pages 61 - 70)

9 .3

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24 Update (Pages 71 - 92)

9 .4

Cheadle Town Centre Projects (Pages 93 - 106)

9 .5

Appointment to Staffordshire Destination Management and Partnership
Board (Pages 107 - 108)

Planning, Development and Property
10 .1 Recent and proposed changes to the Planning System including the
Planning White Paper 2020 (Pages 109 - 134)

11.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The Chair to Move:“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act,
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely
that confidential information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would
be disclosed to the public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt
information as defined in Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.”

12.

Planning, Development and Property
12 .1 Disposal of plot 12-15 Victoria Business Park - Referral from Service Delivery
and Overview Committee (Pages 135 - 164)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
)

Agenda Item 2
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET DECISIONS
TUESDAY, 4 AUGUST 2020
PRESENT:

Councillor S E Ralphs MBE (Chair)
Councillors M Bowen, M A Deaville, T Hall, J Porter, S Scalise and
E Wain

IN ATTENDANCE:
61

Councillors J Aberley, G Bentley, S Coleman, E Fallows, K Hoptroff,
K Jackson, L Malyon, L Swindlehurst, R Ward and N Yates

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED)
DECISION – That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 16 June 2020
be APPROVED as a correct record.

62

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY
The following declarations were made:
Agenda Item

Agenda Item 12 –
Disposal of Plots 12 – 15
Victoria Business Park

63

Member Declaring
Interest

Nature of Interest

Cllr. T Hall

Other Interest – Son-in-Law
is Director of MF Tyler

Cllr. S. Scalise

Lobbied – No response
given

FORWARD PLAN
DECISION:
That the Forward Plan be APPROVED for publication.

64

FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT & PERFORMANCE
REVIEW
The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 31 March 2020 (Fourth
Quarter 2019/20). The report was considered by the Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Panel on 15 July 2020. The position was summarised as follows:
Subject
Finance

Headline
Headlines for the Fourth quarter were:
Performance against Budget
 At the fourth quarter stage the General Fund provisional
outturn for 2019/20 was an underspend of £1,322,792.
Efficiency Programme
Page 3

Cabinet - 4 August 2020


The 2019/20 general fund efficiency target of £842,000 had
been exceeded with £1,025,000 of savings achieved.
Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2019/20 was £3.3
million. The outturn for the year was £2.7 million; a variance of
£0.607 million – mostly in respect of underspend on Disabled
Facilities Grant works.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31 March 2020 totalled £9.7 million.
The Ascent loan and debenture currently stood at £14 million.
 Council borrowing at 31 March 2020 totalled £10 million
(related to the Ascent loan)
 The Council’s net interest income receipts were £73,110
surplus above budget.
Revenue Collection
 98.55% of Council Tax was collected by 31 March 2020
compared to 98.66% for the same period last year.
 99.30% of Business Rates was collected by 31 March 2020
compared with 99.13% for the same period last year.
Variances in payments plans are contributing to the above year-onyear difference
 At the end of the Fourth Quarter debt that was over 60 days
old was £70,729 which compared with £70,434 at 31 March
2020.
Procuremen
t

Headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:

11 procurement activities were completed

The Procurement forward plan included 56 procurement
activities for completion in 2020/21 (either SMDC only or joint)

At the 31 March 2020, 67% of procurement activity
undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid 97%
of its invoices within 30 days during the year

Performanc
e

The headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:

67% of the key performance indicators met target (43% of
which were better than last year)
 The Council received 63 complaints and 65 compliments in the
Fourth Quarter.
 12 projects on track, 1 completed, 1 Red Rated and 6 Grey.

Members commented that the positive report reflected a tremendous effort on the
part of all involved.
DECIDED:
1. That the Fourth Quarter 2019/20 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised in the report be
NOTED.
2. That the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue Account to
reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.10) be APPROVED.
3. That the proposal to carry forward unspent revenue budget as described in
Appendix A (paragraph 2.12) be APPROVED.

Page 4

Cabinet - 4 August 2020
4. That the proposals to carry forward unspent capital budget as set out in Appendix
A (paragraph 5.6) be APPROVED.
65

FINANCIAL PLANNING PROCESS
The purpose of the report was to present the proposed financial planning process in
order to review the longer term impact the Coronavirus pandemic had had on the
financial position of the Authority.
A summary version of the updated MTFP – focusing on specific significant areas of
change, would be presented to Members once the process had been completed.
DECIDED:
That the proposed process be NOTED.

66

OUTDOOR SPORTS & RECREATION CAPITAL FUNDS IN SUPPORT OF
LEEK TOWN FC 3G PITCH CONVERSION PROJECT
The purpose of the report was to seek approval for capital funds to support Leek
Town FC in converting their current natural grass pitch to a 3G all-weather pitch.
Subject to approval, the timeline of the funding process would be to submit the bid to
the Football Foundation, receipt of an offer in January 2021 and opening of the
newly installed facility in September 2021.
DECISION:
That the allocation of £100,000 capital funding to Leek Town FC providing match
funding towards converting their current natural grass pitch to a 3G all-weather pitch
be APPROVED.

67

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:
That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section
100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by
virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.

68

ICT MANAGED SERVICE PROCUREMENT
The report outlined to Members the future options in relation to the Council’s ICT
managed service contract.

Page 5

Cabinet - 4 August 2020
69

DISPOSAL OF PLOT 12-15 VICTORIA BUSINESS PARK
Councillor Hall had declared a Other Interest and left the meeting prior to the
commencement of this item. Councillor Scalise had declared a lobbying interest.
The report updated the Cabinet regarding the disposal of the last remaining plot at
Victoria Business Park and requested authority to dispose of the asset in order to
maximise the value of the land and realise a capital receipt.

The meeting closed at 3.00 pm

Page 6
_________________________________Chairman

Agenda Item 8

CABINET FORWARD PLAN
October – December 2020
The Forward Plan is a list of decisions the Council’s Cabinet intends to take
shortly. Some of these decisions are known as ‘Key Decisions.’ The Plan is
updated and published 28 days before each meeting of the Cabinet and is
available, together with all public reports referred to, from our website
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk and offices, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street,
Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Should you have any questions
regarding these documents please contact the Council’s Member Services Team
via our website or by telephoning 01538 395613.
A key decision is one defined as:
"One likely to result in expenditure or savings which are significant having regard
to the Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates."
OR
"To be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an
area comprising two or more District Wards."

Documents relating to matters listed, and which are open to the public, will be
available five working days before the date of the meeting by visiting the
Council’s website www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk or by telephoning 01538 395551.
They are also available from our offices – Moorlands House, Stockwell Street,
Leek Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Other documents relevant to decisions
to be taken may be submitted to the decision maker.
Meetings of the Cabinet are held in public. However, occasionally, some
meetings, or part of meetings, may need to be held in private due to the content
of the reports to be discussed (e.g. commercially sensitive or personal
information). This document indicates which reports and dates of meetings
where this will apply and the reason for this.
Five days before a private meeting takes place the Council will publish a further
notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private. This will again state why this is
necessary and give the details of any representations received about why the
meeting should be open to the public. This will also include a statement of the
Council’s response to any such representations.

Page 7

1

INDEX
Date of decision
to be made

Page
No.

1 December 2020

3

First Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review

6 October 2020

4

Revised Performance Framework 2020/21due to COVID

6 October 2020

5

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24 Update

6 October 2020

6

Cheadle Town Centre Projects

6 October 2020

7

Appointment to Staffordshire Destination Management and
Partnership Board

6 October 2020

Matter to be decided
COMMUNITIES
Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order
LEADER

Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review

8

1 December 2020

9

Recent and proposed changes to the Planning System including the
Planning White Paper 2020

6 October 2020

10

Re-Consideration of Disposal of Plot 12-15 Victoria Business Park

6 October 2020

11

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTY

Page 8

2

Communities
Matter for decision

Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

1 December 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Bowen

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Communities

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 9

3

Leader
Matter for decision

First Quarter Financial, Procurement &
Performance Review

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

6 October 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and
Customer Services)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 10

4

Leader
Matter for decision

Revised Performance Framework 2020/21due to
COVID

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

6 October 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and
Customer Services)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 11

5

Leader
Matter for decision

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24
Update

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

6 October 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and
Customer Services)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 12

6

Leader
Matter for decision

Cheadle Town Centre Projects

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

6 October 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 13

7

Leader
Matter for decision

Appointment to Staffordshire Destination
Management and Partnership Board

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

6 October 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 14

8

Leader
Matter for decision

Second Quarter Financial, Procurement &
Performance Review

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

1 December 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and
Customer Services)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 15

9

Planning, Development and Property
Matter for decision

Recent and proposed changes to the Planning
System including the Planning White Paper
2020

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

6 October 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Wain

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 16

10

Planning, Development and Property
Matter for decision

Disposal of Plot 12-15 Victoria Business Park

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

6 October 2020

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Wain

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (Place)

Public/Private report

Private - Information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person

Page 17

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.1
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
6 October 2020





TITLE:

First Quarter 2020/21 Financial, Performance
& Procurement Report

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER:

Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-specific

Appendices Attached
Appendix A (2020/21 – First Quarter (Financial Report)
Appendix B (2020/21 – First Quarter (Procurement Report)
Appendix C (2020/21 – First Quarter (Performance Report)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June (“First Quarter
2020/21”); and

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the Cabinet:


Note the First Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this
covering report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report essentially summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and
performance position after considering service activity up to the end of the First
Quarter (i.e. 30th June 2020).

3.2

Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B
(Procurement) and Appendix C (Performance).

3.3

The position can be summarised as follows:

Page 19

Subject
Finance

Headline
The Finance headlines for the First Quarter are:

Reference
Appendix A

Performance against Budget
 At the First Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn for 2020/21
is an overspend of £345,160 (net of Government Covid funding)
Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter One no savings have been taken against the 2020/21 general
fund efficiency target of £519,000.
Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 is 6.6 million
including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2019/20. The
projected outturn for the year is £3.1million; a variance of £3.5 million –
mostly in respect of programme slippage due to Covid19.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30 June 2020 totalled £15.4 million. The
Ascent loan and debenture currently stands at £19 million.
 Council borrowing at 30 June 2020 totalled £12 million (relates to the
Ascent loan)
 The Council’s net interest income receipts are projected to be £55,210
surplus above budget.
Revenue Collection
 28.76% of Council Tax was collected by 30 June 2020 compared to
29.38% for the same period last year.
 22.30% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2020 compared
with 28.62% for the same period last year.
 At the end of the First Quarter, sundry debt that was over 60 days old
was £97,395 which compares with £82,560 at 30 June 2019
Procurement

The Procurement headlines for the First Quarter are:




Performance

12 procurement activities were completed
The Procurement forward plan includes 57 procurement activities for
completion in 2020/21 (either SMDC only or joint)
At the 30 June 2020, 97% of procurement activity undertaken was on
the forward plan and the Council paid 97% of its invoices within 30 days
during the year

The Performance headlines for the First Quarter are:




Appendix B

69% of the key performance indicators on track (33% of which are better
than the previous year)
The Council received 10 complaints and 22 compliments in the First
Quarter.
10 projects on track, 16 not yet commenced, 1 completed, 1 Red rated
and 2 Amber.

Page 20

Appendix C

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective
management of performance and financial resources, which is the subject of
this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None.

16.6
6.7
Risk
6.8 A

Climate Change
None.
Consultation
None.
Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services)
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Various

Keith Pointon, Interim Head of Finance,
Vanessa Higgins, Information Business
Partner
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk,
vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

2020/21
First Quarter
Financial
Review

1

Page 23

1.

Background and Introduction

1.1.

In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and
recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to
members. This is the first report for 2020/21.

1.2.

The report summarises overall financial performance for 2020/21 with
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council.
Specific considerations are as follows:


General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in
income and expenditure and the funding received by the Council.



Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – considers
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings
forecast for 2020/21.



Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the
performance of the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste
and Fleet services.



Capital Programme (Section 5) – provides an update to Members on
progress against the Council’s capital plan



Treasury Management (Section 6) – sets out the key statistics in
terms of investments and borrowings;



Revenue Collection (Section 7) – considers progress-to-date in
collecting the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

2

Page 24

2. General Fund Revenue Account
2.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the
General Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations
in income and expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service (with staff*)

Alliance Leadership Team
Audit
ICT
Human Resources
Member Services
Property Services
Benefits
Planning Applications
Building Control
Customer Services
Legal Services
Electoral Services
Licensing and Land Charges
Regeneration
Communities and Cultural
Housing Strategy
Transformation
Community Safety and Enforcement
Finance Income & Procurement
Corporate Finance*
Waste Collection
Street Scene
Leisure Services
Horticulture
Environmental Health
Net Total of Services
Net Interest
Funding
- external
- reserves contribution to/(from)
general contingency
use of carry forward from 19/20
earmarked

Expected
Outturn
2020/21

2020/21
Budget

Contribution
to / (Use of)
Earmarked
Reserves

£
41,930
9,940
647,530
49,260
271,800
1,037,320
(178,710)
(330,390)
9,570
75,440
64,520
81,450
(184,200)
50,740
179,630
43,110
5,970
158,550
73,180
6,275,510
1,976,200
401,030
852,420
694,930
(12,330)

£
(9,850)
(47,230)
(3,100)
(37,000)
505,450
39,900
12,070
(9,070)
(30,860)
(16,340)
26,760
50,110
7,950
(790)
(1,000)
245,890
593,600
43,930
(820)
671,210
(12,540)
12,340

10,253,790

12,294,400

2,040,610

(401,170)
9,852,620

(456,380)
11,838,020

(55,210)
1,985,400

(38,200)

(55,210)
1,947,200

(10,107,180)

(14,666,380)

(4,559,200)

4,521,710

(37,490)

276,010
(13,750)
(7,700)

276,010
(13,750)
(38,200)

(30,500)

38,200

7,700

(1,572,250)

(1,572,250)

(4,176,550)

(4,176,550)

-

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance.

3

Page 25

£

Net Variance

£
51,780
9,940
694,760
52,360
308,800
531,870
(218,610)
(342,460)
18,640
106,300
64,520
97,790
(210,960)
630
171,680
43,110
6,760
159,550
(172,710)
5,681,910
1,932,270
401,850
181,210
707,470
(24,670)

- Covid19 support
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit

Variance

(27,500)
(5,500)
(5,200)
-

£
(9,850)
(47,230)
(3,100)
(37,000)
505,450
12,400
12,070
(9,070)
(30,860)
(16,340)
26,760
44,610
7,950
(790)
(1,000)
245,890
593,600
43,930
(820)
671,210
(17,740)
12,340
2,002,410

(1,572,250)
4,521,710

345,160

2.2.

A revenue budget of £9,838,870 was set for 2020/21. In accordance with
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £13,750 in unused budgets from
2019/20 has been authorised.
Horticulture (£13,750): in respect of the playground works to be completed in
2020/21
This brings the 2020/21 budget to £9,852,620

2.3.

The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.4.

The Q1 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year
is £10,197,780. This represents a projected deficit for the year of £345,160.

2.5.

There are no areas of significant underspend (>£50,000):

2.6.

There are four areas of significant overspend (>£50,000):


Property (£505,450 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service
significantly. Firstly car parking, where a £314,000 reduction in income is
forecast and Public Conveniences with additional cleaning costs resulting
in a £35,000 overspend. Industrial Unit vacancies are higher than
anticipated, possibly an indirect effect of Covid 19, leading to a £21,000
shortfall in income. The protracted negotiation of a replacement contract
for property maintenance could potentially add approximately £100,000 to
in-year costs (discussions are still taking place with Derbyshire County
Council in respect of this).



Finance Income and Procurement (£245,890 overspend); Covid-19 has
significantly impacted the Recovery service with income generated from
summons activity predicted to be some £188,000 below original
expectations. Further budget pressure in the region of £70,000 is predicted
in local taxation from the level of spending on external services to support
billing processes. This has been exacerbated to a degree by the heavy
involvement of staff in administering the Covid-19 business support grants
– Government funding has been received to partially offset this.



Corporate Finance (£593,600 overspend); Covid-19 has significantly
impacted the level of savings achievable in the current year Efficiency
Programme, especially those savings premised on growing fees and
charges, and realising additional income streams. The assumption at this
stage is that none of these savings will be achieved. There is also
heightened risk surrounding the savings taken in 2019/20 arising out of the
council’s Leisure Management contract. The combined impact of these
and other costs associated with delivering the Efficiency Programme is
estimated to be in the region of £575,000. This situation will be kept under
review over the coming months.



Leisure (£671,210 overspend); The pandemic has seen the closure and
curtailment of leisure facilities and activities significantly impacting the
council’s leisure contractor. At present, subject to the success of the
recovery phase, the additional cost consequence to the council is initially
anticipated in the region of £680,000.
4

Page 26

2.7.

The £55,210 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 6.

2.8.

The level of funding anticipated for the year is £6,161,950 above that budgeted
due to the following:
External Funding: (£4,559,200)


Business Rates Retention (£4,559,200 additional funding):
o The Council expects to receive £4,521,710 in additional S31 grants
in the year following the announcement and award of Extended
Retail Relief of 100% (33% was forecast in the budget based on the
best knowledge at the time); and Nursery Discount (which was not
anticipated in the budget). Both of these increases to relief were
announced by the government in response to the Covid-19 situation.
Accounting practice dictates that these grants are treated as general
fund revenue in the year. However, the extended reliefs impact the
Collection Fund by increasing the deficit in the year, which will need
to be distributed in future years, therefore this additional funding
needs to be earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to
support other services.
o This increase in Business Rates Retention Funding is to forecast to
be offset in part by an increase in net levy payable on growth to the
Staffordshire Business Rates Pool of £37,490 compared to the
budgeted amount. After taking into account the additional reliefs
awarded, the remaining income forecast for the end of the year is
improved compared to budget setting due to smaller than
anticipated amount to be provided for future appeals against
rateable values. This is calculated on a percentage basis of
Business Rates income therefore the resulting provision required is
smaller due to additional reliefs awarded during the year. As a result
the growth calculation is improved and a greater is levy payable.

Use of Reserves: (£30,500)


Earmarked Reserves (£30,500 additional usage):
o Earmarked reserves are created to match available funding with
future projects and activities. Often it is not possible to anticipate
when eligible spend will occur and so as the year progresses
services will identify projects and schemes where earmarked
reserves can be applied. To date across the authority usage
amounts to £30,500 more than nominally anticipated at the
beginning of the year.

Covid 19 funding (£1,572,250)
In response to the financial strain placed on local authorities by the pandemic
the Government is providing financial support in the form of grants towards
exceptional costs and compensation for loss of income. It is anticipated that
this support will amount to £1,572,250.
5

Page 27

Exceptional Costs Support: (£1,290,510)



General Support (£1,160,510 funding):
The Council has received these monies to support its general
activities as impacted by the pandemic.
Discretionary Grants Administration (£130,000 funding):
This additional grant relates to the costs incurred administering the
allocation of discretionary grants to Covid impacted businesses in
the District.

Compensation for loss of income: (£281,740)


Loss of Income (£281,740 funding):
Councils have been promised the facility to claim for up to 75% of
net losses against budget for income streams that satisfy set
criteria. There is debate as to how the criteria will be interpreted
and to date no claims have been submitted. The authority, based
on a prudent interpretation of the guidance available, anticipates
£281,740 could be received.

3.

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

3.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21.

3.2.

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2019)
included the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation
Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million. This was required to balance the
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m.

3.3.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing.
The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to
enable the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

3.4.

The 2020/21 budget was set in February 2020 with the assumption of
£702,000 of savings in the year. This figure comprised £1,175,000 from the
original strategy reduced by an expected £473,000 over-achievement of
savings against the 2019/20 target. In the event a further £183,000 of
savings were realised in quarter 4 of 2019/20, reducing the amount to be
achieved in 2020/21 to £519,000. The major focus of the savings
programme in 2020/21 being on growth, income generation and major
procurements.

3.5.

At the end of Quarter One, no savings have been taken against the 20/21
efficiency target, largely as a result of the disruption to services caused by
the Covid19 outbreak.
6

Page 28

3.6.

The current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19
pandemic, places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget
during 2019/20; particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. .
There is also a significant risk that the current year savings will not be
achieved, particularly those relating to growing fees and charges and income
generation. At this stage it is assumed that no savings will be achieved in
these areas during the year. This will continue to be monitored over the next
few months as the situation develops.

3.7.

The longer term effect of this is being considered as part of the revision of
the 2020/21 Medium Term Financial Plan.

3.8.

The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the
Efficiency Strategy, which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of
delivering the efficiency programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve
currently stands at £493,000. It has not been necessary to draw on this
reserve in previous years so it remains intact to underwrite performance
against future savings targets in the Efficiency Programme.

4.

Alliance Environmental Services

4.1.

Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) is a company created with a vision
to deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the
Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak areas. The company has three
shareholders: Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, High Peak Borough
Council and ANSA, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East
Council. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the
company and contribution to the Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation
Programme in 2020/21.

4.2.

Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver
High Peak Borough Council Waste services; Phase 2 began on 1st July 2018
to deliver waste services to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and fleet
management services to the Alliance as a whole and Phase 3 began on 1st
April 2020 to deliver street cleansing and grounds maintenance services to the
Alliance.
Alliance Environmental Service’s financial performance & Impact on the
Council’s Budgets

4.3.

The AES business plan for all services delivered to the Council during
2020/21 includes an anticipated operating profit £93,129. No variance to this
is included in the first quarter forecast outturn, however additional costs are
anticipated as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak of £69,017.

4.4.

This table shows in more detail the forecast outturn on the AES contract
included in the General Fund Revenue Account:

7

Page 29

2020-21

£

AES Contract budget

4,473,928

Management fee
Allocation of AES efficiency
Covid-19 costs
Total management fee payable
Allocation of Joint Operation profit
Net total

4,692,517
(125,460)
69,017
4,636,074
(93,129)
4,542,945

Variance to budget

69,017

4.5.

The Council’s share of the total AES revised efficiency target for 2020/21 is
£125,460. This is repayable to the Council and is allocated against the
management fee costs.

4.6.

Additional costs of £69,017 are anticipated by the company as a result of the
Covid-19 outbreak. These are included in the forecast outturn and relate to
provision of cleaning products, PPE and additional agency costs.

4.7.

Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to
separate group accounts being reported. The profit is therefore apportioned
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of
original budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the
forecast profit at the end of quarter 1 is £93,129 and is offset against the
management fee costs.

8

Page 30

5.

Capital Programme

5.1.

This section of the report provides an update to members on the Council’s
Capital Programme.

5.2.

The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund
Capital Programme position at 30th June 2020. Further detail – on a scheme
by scheme basis – is contained in Annex A:
Service

Housing Standards
Property Services
ICT
Leisure Services
Fleet Management
CCTV
Regeneration
Horticulture
Total
Funding:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserves
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total

2020/21
Approved
Budget

Q1Changes

2020/21
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2020/21
£
515,000
871,870
48,160

Expected
Variance
2020/21

£
1,245,000
1,303,170
91,900
50,000
2,568,290
275,100
50,000
421,920
6,005,380

£
540,320
(2,270)
48,160
13,780
(3,150)
596,840

£
1,785,320
1,300,900
140,060
50,000
2,582,070
275,100
46,850
421,920
6,602,220

1,134,760
275,100
26,850
210,960
3,082,700

£
(1,270,320)
(429,030)
(91,900)
(50,000)
(1,447,310)
(20,000)
(210,960)
(3,519,520)

1,227,390
93,000
214,900
220,850
4,249,240
6,005,380

540,320
56,520
596,840

1,767,710
93,000
214,900
220,850
4,305,760
6,602,220

520,000
50,000
400,000
220,850
1,891,850
3,082,700

(1,247,710)
(43,000)
185,100
(2,413,910)
(3,519,520)

5.3.

The 2020/21 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Members in
February 2020 as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan (£6,005,380); and
then updated in July (£596,840 – relating to carry forwards from 2019/20)
resulting in a revised 2019-20 budget of £6,602,220

5.4

The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February
are as follows:

The carry forward of 2019-20 capital budget variances as a result of
projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed quicker
than expected in the year

5.5

The Covid-19 out-break has contributed to delays in delivery of the Capital
Programme. At this stage, a £3,519,520 underspend is projected. The
slippage has been re-profiled in the latest Medium Term Financial Plan
Review to reflect a more realistic timing of capital expenditure in the current
circumstances.

5.6

In addition to operational issues caused by the impact of Covid-19, the actual
demand for Disabled Facilities is forecast to be lower than Government
support received towards the grant programme; a total underspend of
£1,240,320 is anticipated, this surplus is ring-fenced and will be drawn down
as required.
9

Page 31

5.7

Overall capital funding which will be applied to the 2020/21 Capital
Programme is lower than forecast, reflecting the revised timing of capital
spend, hence a reduced borrowing requirement of £2,413,910 against the
revised budget.

6.

Treasury Management

6.1.

This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a
high level treasury management summary.
The Audit and Accounts
Committee receives detailed operational updates on treasury management.
Investments

6.2.

Cash Investments held on the 30th June 2020 totalled £15.4million. Interest
earned on these investments during the first quarter totalled £18,760 and the
average level of funds available for investment was £18.7million.

6.3.

The Council budgeted to receive £88,510 in investment income in 2020/21. A
shortfall of £44,000 is anticipated against this budget is due to falling interest
rates following the Bank of England base rate reduction to 0.10% in March
2020.
Ascent Joint Venture

6.4.

The Council has a debenture of £5million paying 2% and loan of £14million
paying an average 3.91% with Ascent, the joint venture company established
to deliver affordable housing across the District.

6.5.

A report was submitted to Cabinet on 18th June 2019 (exempt by the virtue of
paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)
reviewing the Ascent Business Plan and Delivery Model. Following this report
the current expectation is that the original Loan and Debenture will be
returned to the Council from Ascent and a new Loan arrangement direct to
Your Housing is proposed.

6.6.

The investment income budget was based on the original investments
continuing: £100,000 income from the debenture and £546,911 from the loan.
The current interest income forecast does not assume any variance to this
until more is confirmed about the timing of any potential repayments and
reinvestments.

10

Page 32

Borrowing
6.7.

Total debt outstanding as at 30th June 2020 totalled £12million; this funds the
Ascent loan. The Council budgeted to incur £332,730 in interest charges in
2020/21. This was based on externally funding the full existing Ascent loan
balance of £14million and a £4.2million general fund borrowing requirement in
the current year capital programme. £2million of the Ascent loan remains
internally funded at the end of quarter 1 and there has been no ‘new’
borrowing undertaken for the general fund. Therefore, an underspend of
£99,210 is anticipated against the budget.

7.

Revenue Collection

7.1.

This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council Tax,
Business Rates and Sundry Debt.

7.2.

The Q1 collection rate was as follows:

7.3



Council Tax – 28.76% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2020,
compared to 29.38% for the same period last year.
o The effects of Covid-19 on collection rates are being
monitored. The variance in the collection of Council Tax
appears to be largely due to the delay in the commencement of
recovery action and/ or inability to pay as opposed to deferred
payment plans;



Business Rates – 22.30% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2020,
compared to 28.62% for the same period last year.
o An analysis of the 15 NNDR accounts with the highest
Rateable Values indicates that deferred payment plans account
for the majority of the variance in collection rates and this will
unwind over the year assuming businesses can maintain their
deferred plans when they commence.

At the end of Quarter One the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days old
was £97,395 which compares with £82,560 at 30th June 2019.

11

Page 33

ANNEX A
Capital Programme Update 30th June 2020

Capital Schemes

2020/21
Approved
Budget

Q1Changes

2020/21
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2020/21

Expected
Variance
2020/21

£

£

£

£

£

Housing Standards

1,215,000
30,000
1,245,000

540,320
540,320

1,755,320
30,000
1,785,320

515,000
515,000

(1,240,320)
(30,000)
(1,270,320)

Total ICT

1,303,170
1,303,170
91,900
91,900

(2,270)
(2,270)
48,160
48,160

1,300,900
1,300,900
140,060
140,060

871,870
871,870
48,160
48,160

(429,030)
(429,030)
(91,900)
(91,900)

Total Leisure Services

50,000
50,000

Vehicle & Plant Purchase
Fleet Management

2,568,290
2,568,290

Private Sector Grants
Landlord Accreditation Scheme
Total Environmental Health
Property Services
Asset Management Plan
Total Property
ICT
Leisure Services
Sports - Small Schemes

CCTV

275,100
275,100

Moorlands Partnership Grants
Total Regeneration

50,000
50,000

CCTV - Upgrade

-

50,000
50,000

13,780
13,780
-

-

(50,000)
(50,000)

2,582,070
2,582,070

1,134,760
1,134,760

(1,447,310)
(1,447,310)

275,100
275,100

275,100
275,100

46,850
46,850

26,850
26,850

(20,000)
(20,000)

421,920
421,920

210,960
210,960

(210,960)
(210,960)

6,602,220

3,082,700

(3,519,520)

-

Regeneration

(3,150)
(3,150)

Horticulture
Brough Park Improvements
Total Horticulture

421,920
421,920

Total Programme

6,005,380

12

Page 34

596,840

APPENDIX B

2020/21
First Quarter
Procurement
Review

Page 35

1.

Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was agreed
by Full Council in February 2017.
1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives
linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a
professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and
procurement systems.
1.3 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for
presentation during 2020 initially as an Information Digest report to obtain Member
feedback prior to final approval. The revised strategy will focus on the following
key objectives to support the aims of the Council’s Corporate plan:






2.

Delivering Value for Money
Commercial focus and effective Contract Management
Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership
Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement
Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth
Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts

First Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the first quarter April –
June 2019 is summarised below:
First Quarter

High Value
(> £181,000)

SMDC Only
JOINT (SM/HP)
TOTAL

Low Value
(< £181,000)

-

Total

6
6
12

6
6
12

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 12 procurements exercises reviewed and
completed during Quarter one.
3.

2020/21 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion or starting in
2020/21.
2019/20

High Value

Low Value

Activity
SMDC
JOINT (SM/HP)
TOTAL

(> £181,000k)
4
3
7

(< £181,000k)
28
22
50

Page 36

Total
32
25
57

In addition to the above, there are 133 listed entries brought forward from previous
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined).
3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for
delivery in 2020/21 includes:



4.

IT Managed Service Support Contract
Supporting delivery of the Fleet Replacement Strategy
Car Parks Strategy
Brough Park Play and Recreational improvements

Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity
and the payment of suppliers.
4.2 Performance for the first quarter is highlighted below:Performance Indicator
% of Alliance Procurement
Activity on Forward Plan
Annual contract spend as %
of gross expenditure budget
% Of invoices paid within 30
days

Target

Performance at
30th June 2020

65%

97%

89%

84%

96%

97%

Performance Indicators – targets off track
4.3

We are continuing our communication programme of regular service review
meetings to ensure planned activity is captured and monitored on the plan. We are
continuing to work with service areas to ensure they are compliant in
commissioning Supplies, Services or Works and that the internal processes are
adhered to.

4.4

For 2020/2021 additional new performance indicators have been introduced, these
are currently being measured to establish targets to implement for 2021/2022.
 % of EOI (expressions of interest) that come from businesses within the local
area (over £5,000)
 % of Contracts awarded to local suppliers following submission of EOI
(over £5,000)
 Supplier (Creditor) spend within the local area as a % of total spend

Page 37

ANNEX A
First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed - SMDC
Contract Title

Brief contract
description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Ecological
Surveys and
advice

SLA with
Staffordshire Wildlife
Trust
Development Control

Recurring

Development
Control

SLA

Staffordshire
Wildlife Trust

2

49,968

Emergency
Contingency
Planning
support

SLA Partnership
agreement with
Staffordshire Civil
Contingencies Unit

Recurring

Emergency
Planning

SLA

Staffordshire
Civil
Contingencies
Unit

2

19,927

Grass cutting at
informal
Countryside
sites

Contractor for grass
cutting at specified
sites

Recurring

Service
Comm.

Request for
Quotes

County
Grounds

1

16,783

One Off

Development
control

Single
Source

Paul Smith

8 wks

2,500

Recurring

Regeneration

Contract
change

Transferred to AES at expiry of
existing contract with CITY B Group

Planning
evidence –
consultancy

Leek Markets
Logistical
support services
for pop up
market stalls
Lone worker
service for Civil
enforcement
officers

Subject to future
arrangements for
Countryside
Planning Application
(Detail restricted)

Market stalls
assembly, dismantle
and storage

Procedure

Award Detail

Term
(years)

Removed from work plan – incorporated into wider lone working arrangements

Page 38

Total
Contract
Value £

First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)
Contract Title

Brief contract description

Digital Customer
Portal

Development, hosing and
support
Licences and agreement
renewal
Crown Commercial G Cloud
Consultancy appointment

Public Buildings
Condition and
Measured
Surveys
Playground
equipment
supplies

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award
Detail

Term /
Duration

Total
Contract
Value £

Recurring

Transformation

Call off
Framework
Agreement

IEG4

1+1
yrs

223,062

Recurring

Assets

Single
Source

Oakleaf
Group

TBC

8,975

Contract
change

Service
Comm. / Direct
services

Transferred
to AES

Phase one – 5 sites
Replacement parts for
repairs

BG Sports and Leisure &AES
Novation to existing contract

Novation Phase 3 AES
The following items were removed or deferred from the Procurement work plan for 20/21
Consultation April 2020 Reviews with service leads
Property Management Landlord and Tenant Lease renewals
Consultancy Support – Estates

Removed
Assets

Not to be renewed, no longer required for external support – now in house
Mechanical & Electrical (M&E) Consultancy Framework
Framework not to be procured for HP/SM
Call off from National frameworks will support level of spend required for appointment of M&E
services

Removed

Mechanical Grave digging services

Removed

No longer required not to be renewed – transferred to AES under Phase 3

Page 39

Assets

Service Commissioning

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 41

Staffs Moorlands Performance & Customer Feedback Report: 2020/21 (Q1)

Staffordshire Moorlands Q1 Summary
The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April to June 2020 in relation to
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of the
results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and
compliments.
Performance Overview
There are 131 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’, and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at Staffs Moorlands (27 more than last year). The chart
below shows the results for the first quarter of 2020/21, which are 2% lower than last year with 69% of all targets on track and a 3% increase in
trend with a third of all measures performing better than 2019 despite the obvious effect of coronavirus on performance. The actions being
taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

Page 42

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the 2019-2023 Corporate
Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these projects / actions.
100%
80%

Off Track

100%
69%

60%
40%

31%

80%

In danger of going off Track

60%

On Track

40%

20%

20%

0%

0%

On Track

Off Track

33%

40%
27%

Not yet started / Decision
awaited
Complete / Closed

Better

Weaker

No Change

Customer Feedback Overview
There has been a 50% reduction in complaints during the first quarter of 2020/21 compared to last year and both repeat complaints and
performance in handing complaints in 10 days are well ahead of target. Further information about lessons learned is included in the report.

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work
SM Aim 1: June Results 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

SM Aim 1: June Trends 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 43

The ‘off track’ measures under Aim One include several homelessness indicators concerning the council’s response to the duties of prevention
and relief and the use of temporary accommodation. The impact of covid-19 can be seen in these results with increased numbers of
presentations from the ‘everyone in’ initiative to address rough sleeping. It should be noted however, that the number of placements in
temporary accommodation has reduced significantly since May; down from 15 to just 2, none of whom are classed as family placements.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:
 settled accommodation outcomes for prevention (100%) and relief duties
 processing benefit new claims and change of circs

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Develop a strategy for further
development of affordable and specialist
housing
Complete the review of the CCTV system
and implement the agreed
recommendations
Develop and implement an indoor leisure
facilities improvement plan focused on
improving the health and well- being of
residents

Status Commentary – June

Continuing to review the options for the future of Ascent. No update for Q1

Once access to Ecclesfold is granted the installation can be completed and the replacement of
the cameras in SMDC can commence.
Consultancy work to look at the future plan is going out to Framework, looking to appoint in
the next few weeks.

Page 44

Develop and implement an outdoor
leisure facilities improvement plan
focused around the 'sports village'
concept
Develop a Private Sector Housing
Strategy to improve conditions for
homeowners and private tenants

Leek Town FC 3G project emerging, cabinet report to be drafted requesting capital funds. We
need to identify the actual output required for the Sports Village - Head of Service to liaise
with Portfolio Holder.

Refresh the Council’s Communication
Strategy in order to ensure that there is a
more effective dialogue with residents

A report is going to ALT/Exec/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to
members.

Review the Council's community safety
arrangements in order to maintain
strong partnerships with community
groups
Review the Sport and Physical Activity
Strategy in order to integrate
communities and sports clubs into the
delivery of its objectives

Review of CSS at both Councils to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for the
future

The strategy is being produced and will incorporate links with the Climate Change agenda

Pending following the impact of Covid 19, refresh will be undertaken in current financial year.

Continuing Influencing actions
Joint- HP: Maintaining the provision of
accessible health and social care
SM: Ensuring effective health provision
particularly for the elderly

Staffordshire Moorlands:
The last meeting of the Health Panel took place on 12th February 2020. Tracy Bullock, CEO of Royal Stoke
Hospital and Neil Carr, CEO of the Midlands Partnership NHS Trust, were in attendance and gave
presentations to provide annual updates for their organisations.
At the request of the Panel, Mark Docherty Director of Clinical Commissioning and Strategic
Development/Executive Nurse also attended the meeting. He gave an overview of the WMAS, explained
that the Rapid Response Vehicles would be removed from the fleet by the end of March 2020 and
replaced with ambulance vehicles.

Page 45

Members had the opportunity to raise their concerns and ask questions. The main issue being that no
consultation had taken place, and it was felt that the replacement ambulance vehicles would not be able
to reach patients located in the rural areas as quickly as the Rapid Response Vehicles. Members wanted
assurance that the response times to patients in the Moorlands would not reduce and had previously
requested the statistical data on this.
The WMAS Officer confirmed that the decision had been made and would not be reviewed.
The Panel considered its work programme and added the following items:• How the Council can empower people to take responsibility of their own health and wellbeing
• Provision of defibrillators
A meeting should have taken place on 22nd April 2020 but due to Covid19 this was cancelled. A
representative from the County Council was due to attend this meeting in relation to Public Health
Initiatives Drugs/alcohol. This will be rescheduled when we are able to do so.
Update Q1 2020- The Health Panel have been unable to meet in Q1, however, a Special Health Scrutiny
Confidential Briefing has been arranged with Staffordshire County Council in relation to the County
Council’s Local Outbreak Control Plan. This will be presented by Cllr Alan White (Deputy Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Wellbeing) and Dr Richard Harling (Director of Health
and Care).

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery

mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.
 Combating illegal money lenders such as loan sharks
 Reducing crime, the fear of crime and ASB

Managing our strategic risks
The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim One:
•
•
•
•

Meeting the increased and changing demands on council services caused by demographic changes in the local population (including an
aging population)
The ability to effectively engage with our communities
Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults (meeting the legal duty)
Influencing strategic relationships at county and regional level in support of local area objectives

Page 46

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money
SM Aim 2 : June Trends 2020/21

SM Aim 2 : June Results 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 47

A number of procurement PIs measuring the new ‘local’ focus were unable to report in Q1 due to complications in obtaining the data and staff
resources but should be in place for Q2. Staffs Moorlands is below target for business rates, council tax and sundry debt collection rates due to
the financial impacts of lockdown on residents and businesses. Internal audit recommendation implementation and FOI response times have
also been negatively affected by lockdown.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:







complaint handling and repeat complaints
sickness absence
invoice processing
IT systems and network availability
social media followers
procurement activity on the forward plan

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Develop and implement a plan to
identify new and innovative ways of
generating income

Page 48

Continue to embed good
information management practices
through the ASSURED framework
Refresh and implement the Asset
Management Plan, including a
review of public estate, and ensure
adequate facilities management
arrangements are in place
Develop an Access to Services
Strategy to ensure that Council
services are accessible to all
Implement the Council’s Efficiency
and Rationalisation Programme
(This will focus on a number of
projects including procurement,
income generation, trading,
advertising, and sponsorship, etc.)
Develop a new Organisational
Development Strategy to ensure HP:
effective workforce development
and use of apprenticeships SM: that
our workforce is developed
effectively

Status Commentary – June

Individual project updates within the action:
3.1 Advertising/Sponsorship- need to look at the work already done and review timescales
3.2 Fees & Charges- annual budget
3.3 Empty properties -Empty property review being conducted. Next Empty Property review
commencing July 2020. Review actions from Empty Property Strategy during 2020/21
3.4 Building Control- meeting to be held
3.5 Trade Waste- need to determine an approach with AES
The programme of Information Asset Register challenge sessions which commenced in 2019
will re-commence in September. Animated Privacy Notices under development for the
website. ICT and Info Security Policy reviewed and waiting for Trades Union consideration.
Individual project updates within the plan:
14.1 Asset Management Plan- No update for Q1
14.2 Capital programme - Ongoing with numerous sites
14.4 Land Disposal strategy- we have a significant plan for land disposal. Facilities
Management is being looked at in conjunction with Housing Repairs.
14.5 Facilities Management Arrangements - regularise the arrangement with DCC
The project will overlap with the IT/Digital strategy, a meeting has taken place with
Transformation. Work is currently taking place to produce the outline. Once approved, the
action plan for delivery will be over the next 3 to 4 years
Individual project updates within the action:
2.2 Refresh Efficiency & Rationalisation programme- Within the medium-term financial plan.
Possible upfront funding required to implement the programme. The initial review is to be
presented in September 2020, the formal review as part of MTFP for March 2021
2.3 Hybrid mail- This will be complete once fully rolled out, Sundry Debts and Rents now
being picked up
Information Digest being created. The strategy will identify several projects for delivery

Priority Actions

Develop a new procurement
strategy with a focus on spending
money locally
Develop a new ICT strategy to
enhance and support the delivery of
services

Page 49
Managing our strategic risks

Status Commentary – June

New strategy to go to Cabinet/Exec/ALT, information digest report to go to all members.
Formal strategy to be presented in the autumn, which will result in an action plan over the
next 3 to 4 yrs.
A report is going to ALT/Exec/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to
members. Individual project updates within the strategy:
2.2 meetings AV equipment-no update
2.3 IPAP/Assure- reached testing stage but the software is not ready, on hold until IlAP is fit
for purpose
2.4 Civica Pay- ready to go, resources and timescales for implementation before year end.
2.5 Civica Open Revenues- briefing note being developed for the customer portal
2.6 Env Health/Licencing- no roadmap for flare implementation, collective needs to be
completed first
2.7 Asset Management-Concerto: PC pilot study is up and running, timeline for completion
is the end of this year. Training planned for the full team, go live date is planned for 1st Jan
2021
2.8 Collective- delayed due to Covid 19, resources to be allocated and will get back on track
as soon as possible
2.9 Committee Management- looking at production of the forward plan and the quality of
reports.
2.10 ICT upgrade- M365 is ongoing, Teams has been rolled out to all Heads of Service and
Councillors, P1's to be completed in the coming weeks. RDSW10- super users are testing the
main systems.

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Two:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Delivery of MTFP through the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
Staff resources and retention
Effective contract management
Effective Information Governance arrangements (breach of data protection regulations)
Maintenance of Council's portfolio of public buildings assets
Investment into council assets and long term planning
Financial and Legislative impacts from world events e.g. Brexit
Cyber risk and IT Security

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and
villages
SM Aim 3 : June Trends 2020/21

SM Aim 3: June Results 2020/21

Page 50

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Better

Weaker

No Change

The Council has a perfect record under Aim Three with all targets currently ‘on track’ as at the end of June 2020 and 100% of major planning
applications have been determined on time.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:
 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time
 major and minor developments allowed on appeal

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Support the development of Cornhill
and improved rail links

Support the development of the
former Churnet Works site in Leek
Develop and implement plans to
extend the public market operations
Adopt a new Local Plan

Page 51

Develop a master plan for bringing
redundant mills back into us

Status Commentary – June

Individual project updates within the action:
10.1 Cornhill development project- The bid to LEP has failed, reviewing finance and looking at
employment units
10.2 Rail projects
The project will be restarted - new business case to be produced.
AES will take over stall logistics from 1st August.
The report for Leek market hall is complete and ready for service delivery at the end of July
Individual project updates within the action:
4.2 Adopted Local Plan- The delivery plan is ready once this has been adopted
4.3 Green Infrastructure Strategy- Cllr Porter is presenting at Defra in September, the Council
has written to Defra. A briefing note is required for AMT.
A master plan is required, the plan will be looked at regularly and needs to be revisited. A desk
top review will be conducted.

Implement the Council’s growth
strategy to bring about the
regeneration of towns and rural
communities
Develop a Tourism Strategy to
maximise the positive impact to our
communities

Individual project updates within the strategy:
- Biddulph Wharf Rd masterplan - Application has been receive
- Investment & Acquisition strategy- Blythe Vale/ Local Plan Housing delivery plan
- Cheadle town centre masterplan - Report going to cabinet on 4th August
On hold due to Covid

Support the Churnet Valley Railway
with their plans to bring trains back
to Leek

Heritage Rail Link: EAFRD EOI for tourism infrastructure was successful and invited to full application.
Planning permission has been granted for the track-bed. Heads of Terms and Agreement to lease for
transfer of SMDC land to Churnet Valley Railway (CVR) is agreed.
An initial construction phase was identified which was not dependant on legal transfer or outcome of
engineering tenders. A funding application to Moorlands Partnership Board was made to support this
work with match funding from CVR. This application was approved, and work has already commenced on
this phase.
The European Agriculture Fund for Rural Development (EARDF) has awarded £1,427,906.83 to the CVR for
the Heritage Railway Infrastructure project to ‘Re-connect Leek’ to the rail network.

Influencing Actions

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery

mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.

 Expand the Growth Deal Partnership to provide inward investment
 Provide bus services which connect our villages with our three market towns for services, shopping and leisure.
 Improve access and traffic flows to our town centre
Managing our strategic risks
The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Three:
•

External funding for growth / regeneration schemes

Page 52

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment
SM Aim 4: June Results 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Page 53

On Track

Off Track

SM Aim 4 : June Trends 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Better

Weaker

No Change

As the graphic above shows, performance is balanced at the end of quarter one with three measures on track and three measures off track at
this point. Of the three off track measures two are a result of lockdown restrictions with no access to premises to carry out routine
environmental health inspections. The food team is now back up and operational. Fly tipping became a contextual measure during the last
framework review but the June data reveals significant increases compared to last year, which is attributed to the closure of local recycling
centres during lockdown.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:
 missed bins
 paper consumption
 estimated recycling rates

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Page 54

Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the
transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver
waste, streets and ground
maintenance services on behalf of the
Council in order to achieve improved
performance and value for money
outcomes.
Identify and implement an approach
to reduce the cost of country parks
Develop a plan to improve Brough
Park and John Hall Gardens

Develop a climate change strategy
and an action plan of response to a
declared climate emergency
Review the Council's waste and
recycling arrangements to increase
recycling and to respond to the
emerging national strategy
Review the Environmental
Enforcement Policy in order to take
steps to further reduce
environmental crime
Develop a new Parking Strategy to
ensure that our car parks meet the
needs of residents and visitors

Status Commentary – June

COMPLETED
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) transfer completed 1st April 2020.
Awaiting return of IT equipment and closure report.

No further movement at present, Acting Chief Executive to speak to SOT
Individual project updates within the plan:
12.4 Brough Park Improvement plan- The improvement plan has been done, the budget
provision is in place and we can commence with the procurement process
12.5 Tean Road, Cheadle Improvement plan- Awaiting Cheadle Town Council decisions on
next steps.
Plans to be produced by the end of the year. Ongoing projects will come out of this piece
of work.
Individual projects within the action:
14.1/14.2 Covid has delayed central Gov't progress, expectations not expected to be
known until 2021
14.2 TEEP has not started, simplified assessment will be completed in the coming months.
Policies to be reviewed and updated in the next 12 months

Individual project updates within the strategy:
15.1 We are seeking contractor quotes. A full review is required, we also need to resurrect
the review of pay and display machines. Free parking has been agreed during August and
we will track footfall.
15.2 Parking strategy being reviewed, no update for Q1

Priority Actions
Influencing Actions

Provide waste and recycling centres
across the district
The provision of accessible on street
parking

Status Commentary – June
SMDC are part of the wider Staffordshire Waste partnership which has regularly meetings both at
Officer and member level. This ensures we can influence any decisions being taken at a county level in
regards to provision of such centres by SCC
Staffordshire parking board has ceased to meet during the current COVID-19 Crisis. Last attendance
was at the last board, December 2019.

Managing our strategic risks
The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Four:
•

Meeting the environmental regulatory framework (e.g. air quality and waste regs)

• Energy supply (inc fuel)

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Areas for Improvement: June 2020
Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

NEW: % of initial
homelessness applications
opened at the prevention
and relief duty stages

Aim 1: Increased supply of
good quality affordable
homes

Head of Housing

NEW: Number of TA
placements (including B&B
made for families) placed
over 6 weeks

Page 58

Collection rates: Business
rates (% Business rates
collected as a % of business
rates due)
Collection rates: Council Tax
(% Council tax collected as a
% of Council tax due)

Collection rates: Sundry
Debt (value of SD over 60
days)

Aim 2: Effective use of
financial and other
resources to ensure value
for money

Head of Revenues
and Benefits

Target
2020/21

Result
June 2020

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

65%
prevention

43%
prevention,
57% relief

Continuing impact of CV19 & the backlog from the
number of cases in the homelessness initiative

0

2 (no
families)

98.2%

These are placements under the 'Everyone in'
initiative

22.3%
Effects of Covid on income being monitored

98.2%

28.76%
Effects of Covid on income being monitored

2%
improvement
to 19/20

£97,394.91

Collection rates have been affected by the impact
of Covid 19.

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Target
2020/21

Result
June 2020

Head of Finance

Use of Contracts Registerannual contract spend as%
of gross expenditure budget

2%
improvement
to 19/20

Page 59

% of Internal Audit
recommendations
implemented within
timescale (snapshot at end
of each quarter)

84.00%

Head of Internal
Audit

FOI requests: % responded
to within statutory time
frame (include numbers in
commentary)

Aim 2: Ensure our services
are easily available to all
our residents in the
appropriate channels and
provided 'right first time

KG's of residual waste per
household.

Aim 4: Effective recycling
and waste management

98%

46.07%

95%

73.77%
90/122

385kg

111.17kg
(estimate)

Head of Legal &
Elections

Head of Service
Commissioning

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)
During the first quarter of 2020/21, the impact of
COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic caused
significant disruption to the planned procurement
exercises to be delivered during this period and
subsequently, as a result of the situation, we
experienced a rise in business critical sourcing
activity which was not under formal contract. The
planned activity (and including a number of
pending contract awards) which were deferred
prior and during this period are now being
recovered and progressed for completion, which
we anticipate will increase the amount of spend
which is classed as ‘under contract’
The usual audit recommendation process was
suspended during April-June due to the impact of
Covid-19 but will be fully reintroduced from July
2020.

Response timescales have been affected by the
impact of Covid 19.

Figures are estimated. Result at this point in 201920 was 85.8kg per household.

Measure of Success (PI)
% of 'high risk' premises (AC) inspected per annum

% of routine permitted
process premises inspected

Aim / Objective

Aim 4: Provision of high
quality public amenities,
clean streets and
environmental health

Service Lead

Target
2020/21

100%

Result
June 2020

0.00%

Head of
Environmental
Health
100%

0.00%

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)
There have been no physical inspections carried
out since 1/04 due to Covid 19. The food team will
be operational again from 20/07
There have been no physical inspections carried
out since 1/04 due to Covid 19. The food team will
be operational again from 20/07

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q1 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link.

Page 60

Agenda Item 9.2
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
6 October 2020

TITLE:

Revised Performance Framework 2020/21
due to COVID

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader

CONTACT OFFICER:

Vanessa Higgins - Information Business
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

All

Appendices Attached
Appendix 1: Amended Performance Targets 2020/21
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

This report provides information on the proposed amendments to the current
performance targets for 2020/21, which have been made necessary because
of the effects of the coronavirus pandemic on the council’s ability to meet its
previously agreed targets.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Cabinet note the proposed amendments and
comment accordingly.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Council’s 2019-2023 Performance Framework was considered by
Resources Panel on 5th February 2020. It contains the Council’s performance
targets for the years 2020/21 through to 2022/23 and reflects the ambitions of
the 4-year Corporate Plan adopted in October 2019.

3.2

The advent of a national lockdown on 23rd March 2020 had a dramatic effect
on the Council’s ability to carry out certain functions as previously planned and
a major impact on the local economy and our communities. It has therefore
been necessary to review the targets agreed pre-lockdown for 2020/21 and
propose a revised set of targets for the areas affected. The usual service
planning activity for 2021/22 will follow in due course with the involvement of
this Panel at the appropriate stage.

Page 61

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Performance Framework translates the ambitions of the Corporate Plan
into measurable targeted activity and therefore links to all four of the Council’s
aims and the supporting objectives.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

This report is for information only and therefore no alternatives have been
presented. However, if the target review had not taken place the 2020/21 Q4
report would show a higher than usual proportion of ‘off track’ measures due to
lockdown and on-going coronavirus restrictions, which were outside the
council’s control.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
The adoption of revised targets will help ensure that colleagues do
not become demotivated by now-impossible targets due to external
factors outside their control

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
None

6.4

Financial Considerations
Several financial metrics have been adversely affected by the
pandemic, in particular revenue.

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Climate Change
There are no implications from this report although it is hoped that
there will be some positive legacy aspects from lockdown in terms
of reduced business co2 emissions from employee transport

6.7

Consultation
All Heads of Service have been fully engaged in the process of
reviewing their 2020-21 targets in response to lockdown

6.8

Risk Assessment
The impact of lockdown on the council’s risk profile was the subject
of an Information Digest Report to Audit & Accounts Committee in
June 2020

Page 62

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive
Web Links and
Background Papers
Performance Framework 2020-2023

Contact details
Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner
vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 63

7.

Detail

7.1

The Council’s 2019-2023 Performance Framework was considered by
Resources Panel on 5th February 2020. It contains the council’s performance
targets for the years 2020/21 through to 2022/23 and reflects the ambitions of
the 4-year Corporate Plan adopted in October 2019.

7.2

The advent of a national lockdown on 23rd March 2020 had a dramatic effect
on the council’s ability to carry out certain functions, particularly where access
to premises was involved such as regulatory inspections. It also had a major
impact on the Staffordshire Moorlands’ economy and the health and wealth of
its communities. It has therefore been necessary to review the 2020/21 targets
agreed pre-lockdown and propose a revised set of targets for the relatively
small but significant number of areas affected.

7.3

Of the 131 performance indicators in the previously agreed framework for
2020-21, around a fifth (18%) are now subject to revised targets as a result of
this COVID-19 review. The revised targets for social media impact have been
amended upwards to reflect the increased reach of the council during
lockdown. The remainder are largely unaffected or measure contextual data
only.

7.4

The usual service planning activity for 2021/22 to 2023/24 will follow in the
New Year with the involvement of this Panel at the appropriate stage.

Page 64

Appendix 1: Performance Targets 2020-21

Page 65
Staffordshire Moorlands Performance Framework 2020-21

Covid 19 target review

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work
Measure

Reported

2019-20
Target

2019-20
Result

2020-21
Target

Target
Review

Objective: Increased supply of good quality affordable homes

Page 66

NEW: % of initial applications opened at the
prevention and relief duty stages.

Monthly

NEW

60%: 40%
May 2020

65%:35%

60%:40%

NEW: Number of TA placements (including
B&B made for families ) placed over 6 weeks

Monthly

NEW

15 (no families)
May 2020

0

5

15%

30%

2

1

% of active housing register applicants in
Annual
15%
7.69%
priority need (classes A and B) who have been
registered in excess of 6 months
Objective: Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health
NEW: Number of priority areas, where
place-based work to reduce inactivity, is
being undertaken.

Covid 19 target review

Annual

NEW

NEW

Aim 2: To use resources effectively and provide value for money
Measure

Reported

2019-20
Target

2019-20
Result

2020-21
Target

Target
Review

Objective: Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided 'right first time'

Page 67

No. / % of interactions: a) phone b)
face to face c) web

Monthly

a) 37%
b) 23%
c) 40%

a) 39253 39%
b) 20595 20%
c) 41526 41%
2019-20
a) 6438 40%
b) 0
0%
c) 9820 60%
May 2020

a)38%
b)23%
c)39%

Refocus the PI :
a) % of assisted contact
(phones and face to face )
b) % of web
TARGETS
a) 59 %
b) 41 %

Avoidable contact (number taken
from customer portal)

Annual

12%

N/A

12%

15%

92.1%
(35/38)

95%
(37/39)

92.1%
(35/38)

33/39 (85%)

22,000

21,000

Objective: More effective use of Council assets
% & number of council owned
business units occupied
Objective: Effective use of ICT

Annual

NEW: Number of Onevu (customer
Quarterly
NEW
NEW
portal) accounts
Objective: Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money
Number of twitter followers

Quarterly

1875

1974

1975

2000

Number of Facebook followers

Quarterly

800

1923

1150

2000

Covid 19 target review

Measure

Page 68

Reported

2019-20
Target

2019-20
Result

2020-21
Target

Target
Review

Collection rates: Business rates

Monthly

98.1%

98.2%

96%

Collection rates: Council Tax

Monthly

98.1%

98.2%

96.2%

Collection rates: Sundry Debt (value
of SD over 60 days old)
% of procurement activity on the
Procurement Forward Plan (Joint
Alliance measure)
% of internal audit recommendations
implemented within timescale

Quarterly

67.38%

2%
Reduction
65%

Match 2019/20

Quarterly

5%
reduction
72%

99.3%
2019-20
16.68%
May 2020
98.55%
2019-20
19.82%
May 2020
£70,729

Quarterly

97.5%

98.28%

98%

92%

% of corporate efficiency savings met

Annual
Annual

49%
2018-19
a)(0.05%)
b)1.43%
Q3 2019-20

100% of
Target
Net Budget
+/- 5% variance

50%

a) Expenditure variance to budget
b) Income variance to budget

100% of
target
Net Budget
+/- 5%
variance

Covid 19 target review

60%

Net Budget
+/- 25% variance

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and villages
Measure

Reported

2019-20
Target

2019-20
Result

2020-21
Target

Target
Review

10%

5%

Objective: High quality development and building control with an open for business approach
% of planning applications with preapplication enquiries

Annual

10%

10%

Page 69

Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate emergency
Measure

Reported

2019-20
Target

2019-20
Result

2020-21
Target

Target
Review

Objective: Provision of high-quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health
% of 'high risk' premises (A-C) inspected per
annum

Quarterly

100%

100%

100%

75%

% of routine permitted process premises
inspected

Quarterly

100%

85%

100%

75%

% food premises compliant with FSA criteria

Annual

98%

98%

98%

95%

Covid 19 target review

Measure

Reported

2019-20
Target

2019-20
Result

2020-21
Target

Target
Review

Number of community clean-up campaigns

Annual

75

67

80

60

Number of pest control contracts

Annual

54

54

56

54

Private water supplies - % of sampling
programme completed

Annual

100%

100%

100%

75%

Page 70
Covid 19 target review

Agenda Item 9.3
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
6 October 2020

TITLE:

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 –
2023/24 Update

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader
SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER:

Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to present an updated summary version of the
Medium-Term Financial Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24, forecasting the longer term
impact the Coronavirus pandemic has had on the financial position of the
Authority.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That Cabinet notes the forecast updated MTFP position.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The budget setting and medium term financial planning process provides the
Council with the opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in accordance
with local priorities.

3.2

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in
February 2020.

3.3

This resulted in a small surplus position of £17,840 on the General Fund by the
end of 2023/24, with an overall contribution of £35,950 into reserves over the 4
year life of the plan.

3.4

However, since the MTFP was approved, the Coronavirus pandemic has had,
and is likely to continue having an adverse impact on the Council’s financial
position. The financial impact is arising from additional expenditure in dealing
with the crisis both externally and organisationally, lost income and savings
targets that may not be met within the same timeframe due to resources being
diverted elsewhere.

Page 71

3.5

The 2020/21 projected outturn (as per the Quarter 1 financial report) is currently
forecasting a £0.35 million deficit. At the end of 2019/20, the Council
established a Covid-19 earmarked reserve specifically to support with the
financial impact of Covid-19 totalling £500,000 - utilising part of the 2019/20
underspend generated. Therefore part of this earmarked reserve can be drawn
to cover the projected 2020/21 deficit

3.6

The current four year MTFP has been updated to reflect Covid-19 related
pressures and updated economic forecasts in order to begin to understand the
medium term financial impact.

3.7

It is extremely difficult to forecast how long the recovery period will be and also
what impact the economic recession will have. The report details the
assumptions that have been made at this point (as well as the risks), which will
be continually under review as new information becomes available and the
2020/21 position develops.

3.8

At this stage, the updated MTFP highlights a required use of reserves over the
4 year period of £1.8million in order to balance. Utilising the Covid-19 recovery
earmarked reserve and re-designating the pensions earmarked reserve, would
result in a required drawdown from contingency reserves of £883,220, as shown
below:
MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement
Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve
Pensions Re-designated Reserve
Balance to be funded
General Fund Contingency
Balance to be funded
General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2020
Drawdown over 2020/21 – 2023/24
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2024

£
1,833,220
(500,000)
(450,000)
883,220
(883,220)
2,419,000
(883,220)
1,535,780

3.9

Consequently, at the end of year 4 of the plan (2023/24) there would be an
estimated balance of £1.535million in General Fund Contingency reserves –
£0.435 million above the required £1.1 million minimum required balance as set
out by the Chief Finance Officer in the MTFP approved in February 2020.

3.10

The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in year 4 of
the plan 4 (2023/24) whereas the position at February 2020 was a small surplus
position at that stage. At the next iteration of the MTFP, an additional year will
be added to the plan to understand if the Council is back to a balanced budget
position at that point.

3.11

If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would need
to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.

3.12

The next iteration of the MTFP is due towards the end of the calendar year and
then again alongside the presentation and setting of the Budget 2021/22 in
February 2021

Page 72

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective
management of financial resources, which is the subject of this report.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no options to consider at this stage.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The Council has been and will continue to support agencies in ensuring
compliance with social distancing regulations including the monitoring of
parks and open spaces and housing complexes.

6.2

Workforce
The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted significantly on the working
arrangements for the Council’s employees.
The response to the pandemic has seen the following changes in working
practices:
 Where possible staff are working from home;
 Frontline staff are working safely with the appropriate PPE;
 Staff have been redeployed from time to time in order to support the
additional demand created by several new service functions, e.g.
small business and discretionary grant processing; providing support
for vulnerable people etc.
The Council has maintained and continues to maintain a good dialogue with
staff representatives and trade unions and they have and continue to be
supportive of the Councils approach.
The Council has established a recovery plan that ensures the safety of
staff as we look to reinstate services.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and
Diversity policies.
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
There have been and continue to be a significant number of regulatory
changes during the response and recovery from the pandemic.

16.6

Climate Change

Page 73

The COVID-19 response has resulted in some positive benefits in respect of
carbon reduction, including:
 Reduced employee travel during lockdown;
 Reduced energy consumption in public buildings due to building
closures and reduced use; and
 Improved air quality due to general reductions in travel.
It is important that these areas are reviewed to identify potential new ways of
working as part of the recovery process that will have a positive legacy on
the climate change challenge.
Although there is a positive environmental impact on the District due to
reduced emissions, there has been an increase in environmental crime
which the Council is continuing to monitor and enforce if necessary.
6.7

Consultation
The Council’s annual budget plans are the subject of an annual public
consultation exercise.

6.8

Risk A Risk Assessment
The pandemic has resulted in a number of risks that need to be assessed
and managed and may have a financial impact, these include:
 Inability to deliver critical services due to loss of staff,
 Inability to maintain the financial stability of the Council,
 Failure to deliver health and safety responsibilities,
 Safeguarding issues arise through the enhanced level of community
support,
 Staff are at increased risk of the disease in certain services,
 Increased risk of fraud and cyber security,
 Lack of PPE for key workers,
 Increase in community safety issues which are difficult to respond to
due to capacity,
 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic
problems in town centres and the broader economy,
 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic
support.
Risk assessments have been completed for all services and mitigation
measures have been built into the Council’s recovery plans.
Financial risks have been identified within the report.
CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Interim Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Various background working papers

Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

7.

Introduction

Page 74

7.1

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the next
4 years.

7.2

The current MTFP was approved by Full Council in February 2020, and the next
scheduled update was due for presentation in November/December 2020.

7.3

However, the Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having
an adverse impact on the Council’s financial position. The financial impact is
arising from additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally and
organisationally, lost income and savings targets that may not be met within the
same timeframe due to resources being diverted elsewhere.

7.4

There is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will have on the
delivery of corporate plan objectives. Therefore to attempt to understand and
forecast this and to allow more time to effectively plan the longer term response,
an early review of the MTFP has been undertaken.

7.5

The review focuses on the current approved MTFP. At this stage, no additional
financial years have been added and no additional budget demand items have
been included. The review simply updates the current MTFP in light of the
estimated financial impact of Covid-19.

8.

Current Approved Medium Term Financial Plan

8.1

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in
February 2020. A balanced budget for 2020/21 was presented, providing for a
net general fund budget of £9,838,870.

8.2

A new financial year (2023/24) was added to the MTFP and the overall financial
assumptions were updated for the four years. This resulted in a small surplus
position of £17,840 on the General Fund by the end of 2023/24. An overall
contribution of £35,950 into reserves was forecast during the 4 year life of the
plan.

8.3

The MTFP also included an updated General Fund Capital Programme of
£17,704.640 over the period 2019/20 – 2023/24

8.4

The report did flag the risks around the outcomes of national funding reviews
(i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new homes bonus) which may
have a detrimental impact on the future financial position.

8.5

The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the approved MTFP
is shown below:Contingency
Reserves

2019/20
(£)

2020/21
(£)

Page 75

2021/22
(£)

2022/23
(£)

2023/24
(£)

Balance at Year End
2,153,280 2,429,290 2,365,840 2,171,390 2,189,230
Minimum Requirement 1,052,000 1,107,000 1,107,000 1,107,000 1,107,000
Headroom
1,101,280 1,322,290 1,258,840 1,064,390 1,082,230
8.6

A summary of the approved four year revenue position for the General Fund is
shown in ANNEX A.

9.

Coronavirus Pandemic – 2020/21 Impact

9.1

As a priority, the financial impact that Covid-19 would potentially have on the
current financial year (2020/21) was reviewed in June 2020. This has now been
updated as part of the Quarter 1 Financial Report, which also takes account of
the confirmed and estimated future Government funding.
2020/21 Financial risk Assessment

9.2

A ‘Finance and Performance Impact of COVID-19’ Report was presented to
Members on 4th June 2020. The report attempted to forecast the impact that
COVID-19 will have on the financial position and performance of the Council(s)
in 2020/21.

9.3

In terms of the estimated impact on the 2020/21 financial position, a risk matrix
was completed which listed those potential financial risks – which were rated
dependent on current status:Rating

Description

IMPACT EMERGING

Costs already being incurred

IMPACT LIKELY

Costs likely to occur – as yet unidentified

POTENTIAL RISK

Remains a risk – not emerged to date

9.4

Each risk was then reviewed and an attempt made at forecasting the financial
impact (where possible) - an ‘impact range’ of LOW – MEDIUM - HIGH was
applied taking into account length of lockdown and recovery period

9.5

The estimated financial impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget position
was presented as below:
General Fund

Impact Range based on Timescales
Low

Medium

High

£

£

£

Impact Emerging

416,055

634,253

1,001,190

Impact Likely

340,458

552,492

808,112

Potential Risk

121,168

247,106

503,754

TOTAL

877,681

1,433,851

2,313,056

Quarter 1 Financial Update

Page 76

9.6

The 2020/21 forecast has been updated as part of the Quarter 1 Financial
Update (see separate report on this agenda).

9.7

In summary, the Quarter 1 Financial Update forecasts a £350,000 deficit for
2020/21 after taking into account Covid-19 related funding. The deficit is mainly
due to the impact from losses in fees and charges income, additional costs in
supporting the operation of the leisure centres, waste collection, additional
cleaning and a potential shortfall in realising efficiency savings.

9.8

When establishing the 2020/21 budget, it included a contribution into general
fund contingency reserves of £0.28million. Therefore, the forecast deficit
position results in a variance to this assumption of £0.35 million – with an overall
£70,000 use of reserves.

9.9

However, at the end of 2019/20, the Council established a Covid-19 earmarked
reserve specifically to support with the financial impact of Covid-19 totalling
£500,000 - utilising part of the 2019/20 underspend generated.

9.10

Therefore, this reserve will be used first to fund any 2020/21 in year deficit.
Based on the quarter 1 projection, £350,000 would be drawn from the
earmarked reserve, leaving £150,000 for future years.

9.11

The 2020/21 financial position will be monitored and updated throughout the
year taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and
any further updates on Government funding.
Government Covid-19 Funding

9.12

On 2nd July 2020, the Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) announced a package of
financial support for local government, providing three central pillars of support:
COVID-19 related expenditure
- An overall £4.3 billion million non ring-fenced allocation. The Council has
so far received three allocations of non-ringfenced funding from
Government totalling £1,160,514. The allocations reflect the factors from
which the MHCLG monthly data returns (as completed by each Local
Authority) correlate most closely with expenditure. The allocations also take
account of population, deprivation and the way that service costs vary
across the country.
- A further £130,000 towards the additional costs of the administration of the
business grants process.
Irrecoverable income loss
- Recognises that Councils have lost a great deal of income from sales, fees
and charges (SFC) since the start of the pandemic.
- Reimbursements of lost income where these losses are more than 5% of
planned income - Government will fund 75p in every pound. The income
scheme will cover transactional income from the delivery of services which
is unavoidably irrecoverable – this will be the net loss. The 5% deductible

Page 77

will be based on total SFC’s budgets - it is not a line by line analysis. No
forms of commercial income will be covered by this scheme.
Losses in tax revenue
- Tax deficits can be repaid over three years rather than the usual one
- There is uncertainty at this point how much tax loss will materialise, so the
government will agree a fair apportionment of irrecoverable council tax and
business rates losses, between central and local government, for 2020 to
2021.
9.13

The table below provides a summary of Government funding (confirmed and
estimated)
Covid Grant Support
Covid 19 General Support- Phase 1
Covid 19 General Support- Phase 2
Covid 19 General Support- Phase 3
Covid 19 Grants Admin Support
Covid 19 Income Loss Support (est)
General Support
Covid 19 Track & Trace (via County)
Covid 19 Rough Sleepers Initiative
Service Specific Support
Total

SMDC
£
46,186
975,408
138,920
130,000
284,740
1,572,254
50,000
1,584
51,584
1,623,838

9.14

The 2020/21 position will be monitored regularly and formally reported to
Members as part of the usual quarterly financial reporting process. Finance
will be working with Services on a monthly basis to assess the 2020/21 position.

10.

Coronavirus Pandemic - Medium Term Financial Plan Impact

10.1

Whilst the Council appears to be in a position to offset the majority of the impact
of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget via Government funding and use of
reserves, there is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will have
on the delivery of corporate plan objectives.

10.2

Therefore, a review of the current MTFP has been undertaken to forecast any
significant changes to the 4 year forecast as a result of the impact of Covid-19.
The following sections of this report will focus on the four key areas which form
part of the MTFP:





Transformation Programme
Financial Forecasts
Funding & Income Generation
Risks, Contingencies & Reserves

11.

Transformation Programme

11.1

The key areas of review within the Transformation programme include: Reprofiling of Capital Programme forecasts

Page 78




11.2

Treasury management implications of capital programme and economic
changes
Review of current Efficiency plan – remaining savings profile and any
potential reversal of savings already achieved
Impact on major contracts

The table below details the changes made as a result of Covid-19 and
assumptions that have been taken in making those changes:-

Transformation
Programme
Capital
Programme –
General Fund

Capital
Programme
Funding –
Borrowing
Requirement

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions
The General Fund capital programme has been
reviewed to understand the impact Covid-19 has
had on delivery of the approved programme.
Some projects have inevitably been delayed due
to the lockdown period, social distancing
measures and contractor availability.
Consequently the capital programme has been
re-profiled, Overall capital expenditure over the
four year period has decreased by (£1,180,320)
after taking account of the approved carry forward
of £596,840 from 2019/20. The majority of the
variance relates to a lower Disabled Facilities
Grants forecast in 2020/21 (£1,240,320) to reflect
slippage in the programme caused by Covid and
demand compared with Government support
received. There is one increased budget – a new
project approval of £100,000 contribution towards
a 3G pitch at Leek Town Football Club.
The updated general fund capital programme,
with a comparison to the programme approved in
February 2020 is detailed in ANNEX B
As a result of the reprofiling of the capital
programme, the funding position has
consequently changed between years.
Overall there is a (£85,450) reduction in the four
year borrowing requirement.

Treasury
Management
implications of
capital
programme
changes

The treasury management implications have also
been updated to take account of both the reprofiled capital programme and capital funding
programme.

Efficiency
Programme
Review

When setting the MTFP in February, there
remained a £1.150 million savings target to be
achieved in 2020/21 and 2021/22. Following
additional savings that were realised in quarter 4

Consequently, borrowing costs have reduced due
to slippage in the capital programme. Year 1
(2020/21) remains unchanged at this point as the
majority of the borrowing costs budget relates to
the borrowing requirement from previous years.

Page 79

Financial Impact compared
to FEB 2020 MTFP (£)
CAPITAL SPEND IMPACT:
Year 1 decrease (£3,519,520)
Year 2 increase £146,350
Year 3 increase £1,754,630
Year 4 increase £438,220

CAPITAL BOROWING
FUNDING IMPACT:
Year 1 decrease (£2,413,910)
Year 2 increase £124,610
Year 3 increase £1,754,630
Year 4 increase £449,220
REVENUE IMPACT
Year 1 no impact
Year 2 (£133,260) decrease
Year 3 (£144,250) decrease
Year 4 (£102,300) decrease
Overall £0.380 million reduction
in borrowing costs over the
four years

REVENUE INCOME IMPACT
Year 1 £519,000 shortfall
Year 2 (£519,000) increase
Year 3 no impact
Year 4 no impact

of 2019/20, the overall target remaining has been
reduced to £967,000.
At quarter 1 stage, it assumed that the 2020/21
target of £519,000 will not be achieved due to
Covid-19 pressures (this will be monitored during
the year) – which is built into the projected outturn
of a £350,000 deficit.
It is proposed that the Covid-19 recovery
earmarked reserve will fund the estimated
shortfall in 2020/21.
At this stage it is proposed to move the 2020/21
target into 2021/22, resulting in a savings target in
2021/22 of £967,000.
The Covid-19 recovery phase and impact on the
Council’s financial position is forecast at this
stage to continue into 2021/22 (if not longer).
Therefore it is recognised that saving almost
£1million in 2021/22 will be extremely difficult.
However, there are significant savings planned for
realisation in the next 12 months in regard to fleet
procurement.
In addition, the Council has an earmarked reserve
established to support with any reprofiling
requirements of the efficiency programme with
£493,000 currently set aside. Therefore, if there
was a shortfall in achieving savings in 2021/22,
this reserve could be drawn.
Major Contracts

One of the major cost pressures as a result of
Covid-19 has been the impact on some of the
Council’s major contracts.
Leisure Centres
Financial support has been provided in regard to
the Council’s leisure centre operation during the
lockdown and recovery period – which at this
stage is assumed to be until the end of 2020/21.
The leisure centre operation has seen income
receipts wiped out during the period the leisure
centres were closed and is forecasting slow
recovery phase as footfall is reduced in the early
stages of recovery to maintain social distancing
and facilities are opened on a phased basis.
An estimated £677,000 spend pressure is
currently assumed in 2020/21.
Recognising that leisure centre recovery may be
prolonged and income levels may not reach preCovid levels in the near future, a £500,000 growth
item has been built into the MTFP in 2021/22 –
but then removed from 2022/23.

Alliance Environmental Services
The Council owned company has experienced
cost pressures in regard to additional agency and

Page 80

2020/21 target moved to
2021/22

REVENUE SPEND IMPACT
Year 1 £787,000 increase
Year 2 £500,000 increase
Year 3 no impact
Year 4 no impact

overtime costs to enable social distancing and
additional cleaning and personal protective
equipment – this is forecast at an additional
£70,000 in 2020/21
Facilities Management
Enhanced cleaning regimes have been put into
place in public buildings and public conveniences,
increasing costs in 2020/21 by approximately
£40,000. This is assumed to continue into
2021/22.

12.

Financial Forecasts

12.1

A review of financial forecasts includes: Updated interest rate forecasts
 Updated inflationary projections
 Any pensions impact relating to economic changes
 Estimation of any additional medium term costs of COVID recovery:
- Reinstating Services
- Economic recovery
- Community recovery
 Potential financial savings developing from new ways of working in
accordance with recovery plan stream:- Taking advantage of the positive legacy

12.2

The table below details the changes made as a result of Covid-19 and
assumptions that have been taken in making those changes:-

Financial
Forecasts
Interest Rates

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions
When setting the MTFP in February, it was
assumed that interest rates would be increasing to
1.00% in the quarter ending March 2021 with no
further increases until June 2022. However, the
Bank of England reduced the base rate in March
2020 to 0.1%

Financial Impact
(£’000’s)
REVENUE NET INCOME
IMPACT:
Year 1 £44,000 decrease
Year 2 (£14,620) increase
Year 3 £14,750 decrease
Year 4 £31,070 decrease

This took into account the known situation with
regard to coronavirus at the time and its potential
impact on economies around the world. The
Council’s Treasury advisors have updated their
forecast to assume the base rate will remain at this
level for 2 years.
Consequently the cost of borrowing and the return
on cash investments has reduced.
Inflation

The inflationary effects of Covid-safe working
arrangements will feed through the system as
increased supplies and service costs as contracts
are renewed and uplifted.

Page 81

REVENUE SPEND
IMPACT:
Year 1 £22,000 increase
Year 2 £30,000 increase

Year 3 no further impact
Year 4 no further impact
Pensions

The impacts of Covid19 are not expected to have
an effect on pension contribution rates at this
stage. The Fund was revalued in 2019 and is not
due another formal revaluation until 2022. The long
term nature of Pension Fund forecasting means the
impacts of short term financial shocks are
mitigated. This situation will continue to be
monitored following the outcome of this next
valuation.

N/a

The Council carries an earmarked reserve for
Pension purposes, which was originally set up to
meet extraordinary pension costs outside if the
actuarial valuation process. It has become obsolete
having never been used for this purpose and is
potentially available for re-designation. This will be
reviewed alongside all other earmarked reserves
and Third Party funds.
Additional cost
pressures of
Covid-19

In addition to the more significant areas of
additional spend pressures, there are other service
areas that are seeing additional cost pressures.
For example, Homelessness and Community
support and additional costs incurred in providing
teleconferencing / video conferencing facilities and
overtime associated with undertaking extended
duties and dealing with backlogs of work.
Whilst these pressures are being seen in 2020/21,
it is difficult to forecast if this will continue or even
increase into future years as the impact of
recession is seen within the District.
Therefore at this stage, no additional cost
pressures are included in year 2 – 4 of the MTFP.
This will be reviewed later in the year.

REVENUE SPEND
IMPACT:
Year 1 £75,000
Year 2 no impact
Year 3 no impact
Year 4 no impact

Potential
Savings arising
from Covid
recovery

There have been some savings developing during
2020/21 as a result of the lockdown restrictions that
were imposed. Travel costs, utilities, reduced
postage and print and reduced general expenditure
(through stalled projects) have generated to offset
some of the financial pressures being incurred.
The ‘taking advantage of the positive legacy’ work
stream of the Covid-19 Recovery project will focus
on how some of the benefits can be embedded
going forward.
Any financial savings realised as a result of this will
be offset against the remaining efficiency
programme targets.

REVENUE INCOME
IMPACT:
Year 1 (£50,000)
Year 2 no impact
Year 3 no impact
Year 4 no impact

13.

Funding & Income Generation

13.1

The key areas of funding and income generation include:

Page 82

Any savings delivered,
to be realised against
the Efficiency
Programme.




13.2

Council Tax and Business Rates collection
Income from Government Grants
Longer term impact on fees and charges income

The table below details the changes made as a result of Covid-19 and
assumptions that have been taken in making those changes:-

Funding &
Income
Generation
Council Tax

Business
Rates

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions
The Government announced that it will extend the
period over which Councils must manage
shortfalls in Council Tax income relating to
2020/21, compared to expected levels from the
usual one year to three years. This is intended to
ease immediate pressures on Councils when
budget setting for 2021/22, protecting their ability
to deliver essential local services. The Council
has seen a significant increase in the volume of
Local Council Tax Support applications, which
reduces the collectable Council Tax and creates a
Collection Fund deficit. However, the increase in
empty property premium implemented from April
2020, has offset some of this impact.
There is also a risk associated with non-payment,
with some households potentially struggling to
meet instalments. Collection Rates for 2020/21
are behind what they normally are, however this
is currently largely distorted by deferred payments
plans.
Having said that, it is recognised that there will be
an impact on collection rates in 2020/21.
However, the financial impact will only be realised
if outstanding debts are not collected in the near
term and are subsequently written off. This will
be considered in future iterations.
The extended Retail Relief was announced by
Government in March 2020 and awarded full
Business Rates relief to all retail, hospitality and
leisure related businesses. It is unknown at this
stage if the extended Retail Relief will continue
into 2021/22. Either way, the Council would
either be reimbursed via Government grant or the
amount would be collectable from businesses.
However, as a result of Covid-19 and the impact
recession and social distancing measures are
having on businesses, there is a risk that the
District may see a reduction in the business tax
base and therefore business rates retention.
No assumptions on a reduced business rates
base have been included in this version of the
MTFP, this will be considered at the next iteration.

Page 83

Financial Impact (£’000’s)
REVENUE INCOME IMPACT:

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

no impact
£37,000 decrease
£37,000 decrease
£37,000 decrease

There is an overall
£111,000 forecast increase
in the Collection Fund
deficit as a result of Covid19 on the 2020/21 position to be charged over the
following 3 year period

REVENUE INCOME IMPACT:

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

no impact
£1,325,000*
£1,325,000*
£1,325,000*

*There is an overall
£3,975,000 forecast
increase in the Collection
Fund deficit as a result of
the extension to Retail
Relief - to be charged over
the following 3 year period.
The deficit is to be funded
from upfront Government
funding received in 2020/21
to cover the extended
reliefs.

There is also a risk associated with non-payment,
with businesses potentially struggling to meet
instalments. Collection Rates for 2020/21 are
behind what they normally are, however this is
currently largely distorted by deferred / changed
payments plans.
Having said that, it is recognised that there will be
an impact on collection rates in 2020/21.
However, the financial impact will only be realised
if outstanding debts are not collected in the near
term and are subsequently written off. This will
be considered in future iterations.
Government
Grants

The Council has received Government funding
towards Covid-19 pressures during 2020/21. This
has included non-ringfenced grants, specific
grants (for additional services provided such as
the administration of the grants process) and
partial reimbursement of irrecoverable fees and
charges income.
It is assumed at this stage that this funding will
not continue into future years.

REVENUE INCOME IMPACT:

Fees &
Charges

The assumed annual increase in base income
has been suspended for years 2 and 3 of the
plan, whilst fees and charges income levels
recover from the Covid19 shock.

REVENUE INCOME IMPACT:

The MTFP has been updated to reflect
anticipated income losses being suffered in
2020/21 arising out of the Covid19 outbreak. The
service areas affected include car parking,
planning, markets, summons, trade waste, pest
control. The MTFP anticipates recovery of these
income levels over years 2 and 3 of the Plan. By
year 4 it is assumed that income levels will be
back at pre-Covid19 levels.

14.

Updated Revenue Position

Page 84

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

£1,623,838 increase
no impact
no impact
no impact

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

no impact
£25,000 decrease
£25,000 decrease
no impact

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

£762,110 decrease
£725,540 increase
£36,750 increase
no impact

14.1 Based on the above forecasts, the updated revenue forecast for the general
fund is summarised below.
2020/21
Projection
£
6,125,260
2,199,930
141,260
8,286,260
5,010
332,730
231,380
17,321,830

2021/22
Projection
£
6,362,590
2,232,550
141,260
8,263,650
5,010
487,230
231,380
17,723,670

2022/23
Projection
£
6,607,110
2,265,660
142,110
7,797,930
5,010
558,590
231,380
17,607,790

2023/24
Projection
£
6,731,860
2,301,510
142,960
7,892,020
5,010
652,470
231,380
17,957,210

(4,443,790)

(5,254,330)

(5,291,080)

(5,416,080)

(88,510)

(31,310)

(32,750)

(47,320)

(645,390)

(546,600)

(546,600)

(546,600)

Recharges
Net Expenditure

0
12,144,140

0
11,891,430

0
11,737,360

0
11,947,210

Council Tax

(5,507,650)

(5,693,590)

(5,867,080)

(6,043,480)

Covid Support Grant

(1,572,250)

0

0

0

Business Rates Retention

(4,025,430)

(4,058,700)

(4,157,910)

(4,277,990)

0

0

0

0

(194,890)

(194,890)

(194,890)

(194,890)

(7,700)

(7,700)

(7,700)

(7,700)

0

0

0

0

(307,770)

16,910

26,640

25,900

(11,615,690)

(9,937,970)

(10,200,940)

(10,498,160)

528,450

1,953,460

1,536,420

1,449,050

(183,290)

(1,150,290)

(1,150,290)

(1,150,290)

Deficit / (Surplus)

345,160

803,170

386,130

298,760

Cumulative Deficit (call on reserves)

345,160

1,148,330

1,534,460

1,833,220

Budget Heading
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Financing Costs
Total Expenditure
Fees and Charges / Other Income
Interest Receipts
Ascent LLP Income

Rural Service Delivery Grant
New Homes Bonus
Earmarked Reserves
Contingency Balances
Collection Fund
Total Financing
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)

14.2

The MTFP approved in February 2020 included an assumed £35,950
contribution into reserves over the four year life of the Plan. In order to balance

Page 85

the updated MTFP position, there would now need to be an overall £1,833,220
use of reserves.
15.

Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves
Impact on Reserves / Contingences

15.1

When setting the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February 2020,
the general fund contingency reserves balance as at 31st March 2020 was
estimated to total £2.153 million.

15.2

The 2019/20 provisional outturn position highlighted a £1.32 million surplus – of
which £500,000 was set aside specifically to fund COVID-19 recovery activities.
After other earmarked reserves movements, the general fund contingency
balance as at 31st March 2020 was £2.419million (£0.260 million higher than
forecast in the MTFP presented in February).

15.3

The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot
be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the
Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the estimates
included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the budget
provides.

15.4

While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general reserves,
the Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, operational and
financial risks facing the Council. These amounts are then moderated to
acknowledge the likelihood of all risk events occurring together. When setting
the Budget in February, the minimum level of general fund contingency reserves
required was set at £1,107,000

15.5

In addition to utilising the £0.5million COVID-19 earmarked reserve (and
proposed re-designation of the £0.450 million Pensions earmarked reserve) in
offsetting the impact in the current financial year, the Council could utilise
contingency reserves of up to £1.3 million, which would leave the contingency
balance at the minimum required amount of £1.1 million over the life of the
current MTFP.

15.6

The updated MTFP currently shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of
£1.833million over the four years – which represents the required use of
reserves in order to balance the 4 year plan. Utilising the Covid-19 recovery
reserve and potential re-designation of the Pension reserves (as discussed in
para. 12.2) would leave £0.883million to be funded from General Fund
Contingency reserves:

MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement

Page 86

£
1,833,220

Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve
Pensions Re-designated Reserve
Balance to be funded
General Fund Contingency
Balance to be funded

(500,000)
(450,000)
883,220
(883,220)
-

General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2020
Drawdown over 2020/21 – 2023/24
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2024

2,419,000
(883,220)
1,535,780

15.7

At the end of year 4 of the plan (2023/24) there would be an estimated balance
of £1.535million in General Fund Contingency reserves – which would be
£0.435 million above the required £1.1 million minimum balance.

15.8

The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in year 4 of
the plan (2023/24) whereas the position at February 2020 was a small surplus
position at that stage. At the next iteration of the MTFP, an additional year will
be added to the plan to understand if the Council is back to a balanced budget
position at that point

15.9

If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would need
to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.

15.10 All of the above is subject to the assumptions as detailed in sections 11-13
which is extremely difficult to forecast – and does not assume any further
Government support. These assumptions will be continually monitored.
Risk Identification and Management
15.11 The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium Term
Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and actively
managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within the
funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium Term Financial Plan
are summarised in ANNEX C.
15.12 Risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an on-going basis and
remedial action taken as appropriate. Risks associated with specific projects
will be identified within the project methodology documents and reviewed
monthly by the Transformation Board.
15.13 The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within the
Medium Term Financial Plan:

Revenue Risks

Capital Risks

Page 87
















Inflationary assumptions
Interest rates
Revenue consequences of capital
Housing benefits
Fees and charges
Universal Credit
Business Rates Retention scheme
Council Tax collection
New Homes Bonus
Financial benefits from partnerships
/ shared services
Pension costs
Insurance costs
Waste management costs
Brexit implications














Interest rates
External funding
Capital receipts
Capacity to deliver capital
programme
Project overspend
Project overrun
External factors (e.g. planning
objections, judicial reviews etc.
leading to project delay)
Housing Joint Venture
Suppliers
/
Contractors
/
Contract Management
Weather
Brexit implications

15.14 In addition, there are a number of Covid-19 related financial risks to the MTFP
to be regularly reviewed and considered:






The impact that a recession may have on Council Tax and Business
Rates collection and increased risk of non-payment which is not
subsequently collected
The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure
consequences for the Council – especially in regard to the operation of
leisure centres
Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as
forecast
The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic
problems in town centres and the broader economy, as well as
community safety issues, which lead to increased cost pressures
Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic
support.
A local or second national lockdown is imposed which leads to further
pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to the
Council in providing support

16.

Future MTFP Updates

16.1

The next iteration of the MTFP is due towards the end of the calendar year and
then again alongside the presentation and setting of the Budget 2021/22 in
February 2021.

16.2

The forecasts will be updated to reflect latest information, intelligence and
monthly in year actuals and an additional year will be added to the plan. In year
financial performance will be closely monitored within the quarterly financial
reports.

Page 88

ANNEX A
Approved General Fund Revenue Budget (approved February 2020)

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Financing Costs

2020/21
Projection
£
6,125,260
2,199,930
141,260
7,445,390
5,010
332,730
231,380

2021/22
Projection
£
6,362,590
2,232,550
141,260
7,658,200
5,010
724,750
231,380

2022/23
Projection
£
6,607,110
2,265,660
142,110
7,755,230
5,010
810,120
231,380

2023/24
Projection
£
6,731,860
2,301,510
142,960
7,849,320
5,010
866,870
231,380

Total Expenditure

16,480,960

17,355,740

17,816,620

18,128,910

Fees and Charges / Other Income

(5,205,900)

(5,315,900)

(5,340,900)

(5,465,900)

(88,510)

(119,970)

(152,030)

(186,370)

(645,390)

(655,100)

(655,100)

(655,100)

0

0

0

0

Net Expenditure

10,541,160

11,264,770

11,668,590

11,821,540

Council Tax

(5,507,650)

(5,693,590)

(5,867,080)

(6,043,480)

0

0

0

0

(4,025,430)

(4,100,320)

(4,209,380)

(4,397,480)

0

0

0

0

(194,890)

(194,890)

(194,890)

(194,890)

(7,700)

(7,700)

(7,700)

(7,700)

276,010

(63,450)

(194,450)

17,840

(379,210)

(54,530)

(44,800)

(45,540)

(9,838,870)

(10,114,480)

(10,518,300)

(10,671,250)

702,290

1,150,290

1,150,290

1,150,290

(702,290)

(1,150,290)

(1,150,290)

(1,150,290)

0

0

0

0

Budget Heading

Interest Receipts
Ascent LLP Income
Recharges

Revenue Support Grant
Business Rates Retention
Rural Service Delivery Grant
New Homes Bonus
Earmarked Reserves
Contingency Balances*
Collection Fund

Total Financing
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)
Deficit / (Surplus)

*overall contribution into reserves of £35,950

ANNEX B

Page 89

Updated General Fund Capital Programme

Service Area
Asset Management Plan
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes
Total Revised Programme
Original Programme
Change increase (decrease)
Financed by:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total Financing
Original Programme
Change increase (decrease)

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total

£
871,870
515,000
48,160
1,134,760
512,910
3,082,700
6,602,220
(3,519,520)

£
766,940
1,515,650
141,900
723,660
410,960
3,559,110
3,412,760
146,350

£
1,836,580
1,500,000
50,000
876,150
100,000
4,362,730
2,608,100
1,754,630

£
915,490
1,500,000
50,000
301,640
41,920
2,809,050
2,370,830
438,220

£
4,390,880
5,030,650
290,060
3,036,210
1,065,790
13,813,590
14,993,910
(1,180,320)

520,000
50,000
400,000
220,850
1,891,850
3,082,700
6,602,220
(3,519,520)

1,512,390
25,000
2,021,720
3,559,110
3,412,760
146,350

1,500,000
2,862,730
4,362,730
2,608,100
1,754,630

1,500,000
1,309,050
2,809,050
2,370,830
438,220

5,032,390
75,000
400,000
220,850
8,085,350
13,813,590
14,993,910
(1,180,320)

Comparison with February 2020 increase (decrease)
Service Area
Asset Management
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes
Total Programme
Financed by:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total Financing

2020/21
£
(429,030)
(1,270,320)
(91,900)
(1,447,310)
(280,960)
(3,519,520)

2021/22
£
(827,670)
91,900
571,160
310,960
146,350

2022/23
£
828,480
876,150
50,000
1,754,630

2023/24
£
418,220
20,000
438,220

Total
£
(10,000)
(1,270,320)
100,000
(1,180,320)

(1,247,710)
(43,000)
185,100
(2,413,910)
(3,519,520)

12,390
9,350
124,610
146,350

1,754,630
1,754,630

(11,000)
449,220
438,220

(1,235,320)
(44,650)
185,100
(85,450)
(1,180,320)

ANNEX C

Page 90

Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks
Risk Category

Risk

Mitigation and Controls

Financial
Implications

Robustness of financial
assumptions within Efficiency and
Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management
arrangements have been put in place with
detailed business cases for each initiative –
these will be strengthened in the service
review process

Financial
Implications

Additional financial pressures
emerge – cost & income

The strategy is kept under constant review
and adjustments will be made where
necessary

Service Continuity

Interruptions to key services or
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are
identified as part of the business case
process. Service continuity and
maintenance of standards of service are
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder
confidence; lack of clarity on
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan
will be reviewed to account for the new
approach proposed in the Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy

Management of
Change

Management of corporate and
local, cultural change;
behavioural risks; residual effects
of aggregation; proposed
changes to organisational
structure, roles & responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be
monitored through an effective performance
management structure. Investment has
been made in a new approach to
Organisational Development.

People Risks

Impact of cultural changes;

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

assessment of skills; recruitment
& retention;
capacity issues
Key Projects &
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology
provides for an adequate transition where
there are changes in service delivery

Performance
Management

Adequacy of framework to
monitor transition

Risk management processes are
embedded

Reputation and
Relationship Risks

Maintaining existing partner
confidence

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

Page 91

Risk Category
Programme
Delivery

Risk
Delays in implementation of
efficiency savings

Mitigation and Controls
Effective governance arrangements in place
to monitor plans.
Executive Directors and Senior Managers
own delivery of efficiencies.

Programme
Delivery

A number of the efficiency /
rationalisation initiatives are not
achieved

Structured project management approach is
in place for delivery including effective
exception reporting
The strategy is kept under constant review
Identification of further efficiency /
rationalisation opportunities through
benchmarking / effective member working
groups

Political Support

Lack of Members support for
Plan.

Page 92

Regular reporting and member briefings
including effective scrutiny arrangements

Agenda Item 9.4
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
6 October 2020

TITLE:

Cheadle Town Centre Projects

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER:

Sarah Porru- Head of Regeneration

WARDS INVOLVED:

Cheadle West

Appendices Attached – Governance structure
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1.

To outline proposals for the establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery
Board, supported by a Stakeholder Panel, to oversee development and
delivery of town centre projects including options appraisal for the emerging
Cheadle town centre Masterplan and the High Streets Task Force programme
of activity.

1.2.

To provide an update on progress with regards to the Cheadle Town Centre
Options Appraisal Report and the High Streets Task Force and to agree next
steps.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

To approve the proposals for establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre
Delivery Board and Stakeholder Panel, as set out in the report.

2.2

To note the progress on current Cheadle town centre projects.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

A number of externally funded projects are proposed for Cheadle town centre
during the next financial year. It is recommended that the Council establishes
a Cheadle Town Centre Project Delivery Board, supported by a Stakeholder
Panel, to oversee coordination of the work and the effective delivery of
individual project work programmes.

3.2

The proposed governance structure is set out as Appendix 1 to this report.

Page 93

3.3

The projects to be overseen by any Project Delivery Board and Panel would
include, but not be limited to:






consideration of the options set out in the Cheadle town centre report;
oversight of any wider engagement proposed with appropriate
stakeholders as part of the ongoing options appraisal;
recommending preferred options for key sites in Cheadle town centre;
coordinating delivery of agreed proposals for key sites in Cheadle town
centre;
directing the activities of the Future High Street Fund Task Force and any
follow up work.

3.3

Membership of the Stakeholder Panel would be drawn from local elected
members of the District Council, Cheadle Town Council, the Chamber of
Commerce, a business representative and the voluntary sector.

3.4

Membership of the Project Delivery Board would include the Staffordshire
Moorlands District Council, Staffordshire County Council, the North
Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group and the Chair of the Stakeholder
Panel.

3.5

This governance structure will ensure that the Delivery Board remains focused
on the delivery of town centre projects. The Stakeholder Panel will ensure that
the Board has access to the views and resources of stakeholder groups, the
Chair of the Panel being part of the Board to ensure that this is achieved. The
Board will make recommendations to Cabinet with regard to the direction and
management of town centre projects, with the Cabinet retaining control of
decision making within the Council’s Assurance structure.
Cheadle town centre Options Appraisal Report

3.6

Consultants Cushman and Wakefield have prepared an Options Appraisal
report to support a masterplan and investment strategy for Cheadle town
centre. The report sets out opportunities to increase the vibrancy of Cheadle
by delivering new homes as well as community facilities that will help to attract
and retain additional residents and visitors to the town centre.

3.7

The Options Appraisal report proposes a number of options for key sites in the
town, including Well Street and Tape Street car parks, the Community Hospital
and Newlands Care Home on Royal Walk and South Moorlands Leisure
Centre. The report makes recommendations on using the key sites, all in
public sector ownership, as a basis for the re-configuration of Cheadle town
centre to help the town become an even more attractive and compelling place
to live, work and visit.

3.8

The report includes recommendations for the location of a new community hub
building in the town centre. Decisions on the future of Cheadle Hospital and
the South Moorlands Leisure Centre may provide opportunities to offer
replacement health, well-being, leisure and other community facilities from a
single location. The report recommends that the preferred location for any

Page 94

community hub should be at Tape Street car park, bringing additional footfall
directly into the town centre.
3.9

In the medium and long term it may be possible to bring forward residential
development at Royal Walk and the site of the existing Leisure Centre, subject
to decisions on the future of the existing buildings on these sites. In the short
term, residential development may be brought forward at Well Street car park,
potentially in conjunction with proposals from Your Housing Group for the site
of the former Lightwood care home.

3.10

Should all or parts of both Tape Street and Well Street car parks be
redeveloped, it will be important to ensure that a review of parking in Cheadle
is undertaken to ensure that adequate parking provision remains for the town.
High Streets Task Force

3.11

In December 2019 Cheadle town centre was named as one of the first pilot
towns to receive expert advice and support from the Ministry of Housing
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) High Streets Task Force. The
support is designed to help build local capacity with a view to reviving Cheadle
High Street.

3.12

The first step in the Task Force pilot project is an ‘Unlocking your place
potential’ diagnostic visit.
The visit will include a meeting with key
stakeholders to examine plans, identify challenges and provide feedback on
the Council’s original application to the Future High Street Fund. The visit will
also include a site tour with a High Streets Task Force expert who will
undertake a snapshot analysis of Cheadle town centre.

3.13

The Council will receive a formal report of the visit with recommendations for a
strategy considered to be effective for “unlocking your place potential”.
Recommendations of the report are also expected to assist the Council submit
an expression of interest for later rounds of the Future High Street Fund.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board with support from the Stakeholder
Panel, through the projects to be delivered, will have implications for the
following aims of the Corporate Plan:



5.

Aim One – To help create a safer and healthier environment for our
communities to live and work.
Aim Three – To help create a strong economy by supporting further
regeneration of towns and villages.

Alternative Options

Page 95

5.1

Option 1 (recommended) – that the Council approves the proposals for
establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board and Stakeholder
Panel and notes the progress on Cheadle town centre projects.

5.2

Option 2 (not recommended) – that the Council does not approve the
proposals for establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Board, to be supported
by a Panel of Stakeholders. This is not recommended. There is potential for
significant change in Cheadle arising from the implementation of proposals in
the emerging Masterplan and recommendations from the High Street Task
Force. Effective partnership working will be required to deliver this change.
Without a Board of partners to help direct and coordinate activities, there is a
risk that the views and resources of some stakeholders may be lost to the
process and the Council will not be in a position to capitalise on opportunities
for added value from the work of a range of partners.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications.

6.2

Workforce
Officer time will be required to service a Cheadle Town Centre
Delivery Board and Panel of Stakeholders. This time will be drawn
from existing resources.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
The report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
Work undertaken under the direction of the Board would be grant
funded or assisted by contributions from the partners.

6.5

Legal
Legal advice will be sought as appropriate to inform the work of the
Delivery Board.

6.6

Climate Change
The delivery of new facilities to replace ageing buildings will have a
poitive effect on reducing carbon emissions.

Page 96

6.7

Consultation
The Board will be responsible for engaging with the Stakeholder
Panel in developing town centre projects who in turn will be
responsible for engaging the wider communities they represent.
The chair of the Stakeholder Panel will sit on the Delivery Board
and be responsible for representing the views of the Stakeholder
Panel to the Delivery Board.

6.8

Risk Assessment
Risks have been addressed in the body of the report.
Neil Rodgers
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

**INSERT NAME OF ANY PAPERS AND WEB LINKS”

Joanna Bagnall, Sarah Porru
Senior Regeneration Officer, Head of
Regeneration
joanna.bagnall@highpeak.gov.uk,
sarah.porru@highpeak.gov.uk

7.

Detail

7.1

The proposed Cheadle Town Centre Projects Delivery Board, and supporting
Stakeholder Panel, will be made up of representatives from partner
organisations and local groups. The purpose is to oversee the development
and delivery of projects including the emerging Cheadle town centre
Masterplan and the FHSF Task Force pilot. The Board and Panel will also
consider other projects as appropriate, such as the submission of a Future
High Street Fund bid (should a second round be called).

7.2

The Board and Panel will ensure that the implementation of proposals is in
accordance with the aims of the Staffordshire Moorlands Growth Strategy.

7.3

The proposed governance structure is set out as Appendix 1 to this report.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
7.4

The Board and Panel will:
1. Play a strategic role in the formulation of joint goals for Cheadle.
2. Receive reports from partner organisations concerning the delivery of
projects in line with joint goals.
3. Be responsible for considering the recommendations set out in the
Cheadle Masterplan options appraisal report, and for recommending
preferred options.

Page 97

4. Develop a programme for delivering the agreed Cheadle Masterplan
proposals, supported by an application to the One Public Estate
programme as required.
5. Oversee the development of a bid for the 2020/21 funding round of the
Future High Street Fund if appropriate.
6. Coordinate the resources required to deliver a town centre development
programme.
7. Establish a means of engaging and communicating with the local
community and other stakeholders.
8. Regularly review the delivery of the Cheadle Town Centre Projects.
Cheadle town centre options appraisal report
7.5

The District Council, working in partnership with Staffordshire County Council,
commissioned consultants Cushman and Wakefield to prepare options for a
masterplan and investment strategy for Cheadle town centre. The emerging
masterplan is intended to support regeneration of the town centre by
identifying opportunities to increase town centre living and the vitality of the
High Street.

7.6

In August 2019 the consultants met with Cheadle Town Council to listen to
ideas for the town centre that would reflect the ambitions of the Town Council
and its residents.

7.7

In January 2020 Cushman and Wakefield met with the three GP practices in
Cheadle and the North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).
There was an acknowledgement that planned housing growth in the town will
have implications for demand on their services and that additional facilities
may be required. There was a cautious interest expressed by the practices in
participating in the provision of a new town centre community health and wellbeing hub.

7.8

In preparing the Masterplan options, Cushman and Wakefield have been
mindful of the fact that given the relatively low residential values in Cheadle,
delivering new homes is fairly marginal in viability terms. This is a key issue
that has restricted the development of a healthy housing market for some time
and is evidenced by the lack of new housing development in Cheadle over
recent years. Adoption of the SMDC Local Plan will help to address these
issues.

7.9

The options appraisal for the town centre looks in detail at land in public sector
ownership, where public authorities have most ability to facilitate change. The
sites are:
 Tape Street car park
 Well Steet car park and Lightwood site
 Royal Walk (Community Hospital and Newlands Care Home)
 South Moorlands Leisure Centre
 Depot off Leek Road (Stoddards – site allocation in the SMDC Local Pan)
 Market Place

Page 98

7.10

A number of options have been explored for each of these sites. Those
options considered suitable for shortlisting and viability appraisal are
summarised below:

7.11

Tape Street car park





7.12

Option D: Delivery of a new Leisure Centre (3200 m²) and a Health hub
(1520 m²), along with parking, public realm improvements and small
residential development.
Option G: Delivery of a new Leisure Centre (3500 m²) and a Health hub
(1700m²), along with parking, public realm improvements and small
residential development. Town centre car parking is moved slightly north to
facilitate a new access road onto the site.
Option H: ‘Big Bang’ option – Demolition of all units on and adjacent to the
north of the car park enabling delivery of a consolidated community health
hub and Leisure Centre scheme fronting onto the High Street, with public
realm improvements including creation of a “pocket park”, small residential
development and public car parking.

Royal Walk


Option A: Demolition of existing hospital and Newlands Care Home and
replacement with new build residential development.
 Option B: Retention and conversion of the existing hospital site as an extra
care facility. Demolition of the former Newlands Care Home site and
development of new build residential.
 Option C: Demolition of all buildings on the site and delivery of a new
Leisure Centre on the hospital site, with outdoor sports facilities provided at
the Newlands Care Home.
 Option for a dementia village: No scheme designs have been prepared or
costed for this option. The nature of such a scheme would require
provision of high quality residential accommodation with extensive
additional services. The scheme would need to be funded by a relatively
high service charge which is unlikely to be funded by the CCG. Relatively
low residential values would impact on the viability of delivering a dementia
village meaning that attracting a private sector developer would be difficult unless the CCG were to commission and fund such services.
7.13

Well Street and Lightwood site



7.14

Option A: Conversion of the existing car park to residential as a separate
scheme from the development plans at the Lightwood Site.
Option B: Conversion of the existing car park to residential as a joint
scheme with the development plans already existing for the Lightwood site.

South Moorlands Leisure Centre


Option A: Existing leisure centre to be demolished and developed as
residential development.
Residential scheme developed in a more
aesthetic, lower density design (42 units).

Page 99



7.15

Depot off Leek Road



7.16

Option B: Existing leisure centre to be demolished and developed as
residential development.
Residential scheme developed to include
maximum residential capacity (46 units).
Option C: Existing leisure centre to be demolished and a leisure and
wellness centre to be developed on the site.

Option A: Conversion of the site to residential space, with the retention of
one of the existing on-site buildings (12 units).
Option B: Conversion of the entire site to residential space, demolition of all
existing buildings that are on site (9 “premium” units).

Market Place
Various proposals to improve the site, including replacing tarmac surface with
natural stone flags; providing a central feature potentially incorporating
seating; painting/lighting the north-east wall; and reconfiguring the steps to
integrate a new ramp.

7.17

Following viability modelling of each of these options, taking into account the
value of the completed scheme and allowing for a developer profit, the
following conclusions were drawn about the proposals for residential
development:


The parcel of land owned by SMDC at the southern end of Tape Street
car park (east of the Police Station) can be viably developed for a small
scheme of five homes.



The best performing option for the Royal Walk site is Option A,
potentially delivering 42 new homes across the hospital and Newlands
Care Home sites. However due to the demolition costs and relatively
low residential values achievable, the NHS and County Council are
likely to receive only very modest capital receipts for site disposal.



Both Options A and B for Well Street / Lightwood are viable. Option B
has cost savings due to a more efficient road layout and this option also
maximises development. The schemes could be delivered as phases 1
and 2, enabling the Council to sell Well Street car park to a third party
(Option A) but it would be more prudent to financially incentivise the
Lightwood site owner to deliver a comprehensive scheme (Option B).



Both options A and B for South Moorlands Leisure Centre are viable.
Option B is the better performing option as there is more value (higher
development density) and lower cost (less road infrastructure).



Option A is the more viable scheme for the depot off Leek Road. It
carries a lower demolition cost and would provide a reasonable profit
for both developer and landowner.

Page 100

7.18

The Options Appraisal has provided the above guidance relating to
opportunities to increase town centre living in Cheadle. The report has also
considered opportunities to deliver community facilities that will help to attract
and retain additional visitors to the town centre.

7.19

Future decisions on Cheadle Hospital and the South Moorlands Leisure
Centre provide options to consider delivering a new community hub building in
the town centre to provide replacement health, well-being, leisure and other
community facilities from a single location. It is expected that such a new
community hub, centrally located, would be a significant draw onto the High
Street, providing spin-off benefits to other town centre shops and services.

7.20

The Options Appraisal has considered options for locating a new health hub,
leisure centre and / or joint facility. Potential locations considered are:

7.21

7.22



Tape Street car park (either side of an extended and improved Greyhound
Walk, (Options D and G) or, subject to site assembly and demolition, a
combined facility fronting the High Street - Option H).



Royal Walk – Option C – a wellness and leisure hub with outdoor sports
provision such as tennis courts.



South Moorlands Leisure Centre – Option C: re-providing a wellness and
leisure hub on the existing site.

Analysis of these options led to the following conclusions:


Locating a leisure and wellness building within a residential area will fail to
introduce new use, footfall and associated vibrancy to the commercial
heart of the town.



Should leisure services be re-provided on the existing site, there will be
disruption and a period of time when no Leisure Centre will be available to
residents.



Residential development at South Moorlands Leisure Centre and Royal
Walk could potentially cross fund delivery of a new hub facility in a more
central location.

The report recommends that the preferred location for any community hub
should be at Tape Street car park, bringing footfall and vibrancy into the town
centre.

Risks and mitigation measures
7.23

It is important to note that in taking forward the recommendations set out in the
emerging Masterplan for Cheadle town centre there are a number of risks for
the Council to address. These are considered below, along with proposed
mitigation measures.

Page 101

7.24

The report proposes new uses for both Tape Street and Well Street car parks.
Whilst options for Tape Street retain some public car parking, it will be
necessary to undertake a review of proposed parking provision in Cheadle to
ensure that residual parking provision is adequate to support all town centre
uses.

7.25

The report proposes new uses for Cheadle Hospital. Stoke-on-Trent and
North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group has announced proposals
to close the Community Hospital and move to a new model of outpatient care
provided by community hubs. A date for the closure of Cheadle Hospital has
yet to be announced. Any wider consultation on options should be timed to
take account of the CCG public information proposals.

7.26

The report proposes residential development on sites not allocated through
the emerging SMDC Local Plan. Whilst Local Plan proposals for Cheadle
assume windfall delivery, any wider consultation on options should be timed to
take account of the timetable for Local Plan adoption.

Next steps
7.27

The Options Appraisal report has highlighted short term opportunities for
residential development at Well Street and Tape Street car parks.

7.28

At Tape Street car park there is a plot behind the Police Station that could
deliver a small scheme of five new homes. Demand is likely to be from a local
house builder / developer rather than a volume housebuilder.

7.29

At Well Street car park there is an opportunity to engage with Your Housing
Group to consider opportunities to bring forward an integrated development
scheme across the car park and Lightwood sites.

7.30

In the medium and long term it may be possible to bring forward residential
development at Royal Walk and the site of the existing Leisure Centre.
However this depends on the decisions to be taken about the wider future of
the existing buildings on these sites.

7.31

The Council will set up a Project team to focus on the delivery of key sites in
the emerging Masterplan, steering decision making about the best future use
for the South Moorlands Leisure Centre and Tape Street and Well Street car
parks. The project team would report to the Cheadle town centre Project
Board, to ensure wider engagement and the capture of opportunities to enable
co-location and expansion of GP and other community services in the town.

7.32

The collaboration of public sector partners in Cheadle to consider the most
efficient use of their assets and opportunities to improve both service delivery
and generate cost savings through co-location and integration supports taking
a One Public Estate approach to delivery.

Page 102

Future High Street Fund Task Force for Cheadle
7.33

In December 2019 Cheadle town centre was named as one of the first 14 pilot
towns to receive bespoke expert advice and support from the MHCLG High
Streets Task Force to build local capacity and expertise to help regenerate
Cheadle high street.

7.34

The first step in the Task Force pilot project is an ‘Unlocking your place
potential’ diagnostic visit. The visit will consist of:





A review of desk-based research into the performance and perceptions of
the town.
A three-hour meeting, with up to 10 key stakeholders from your area. This
allows the Task Force time to examine plans, identify challenges and
feedback on your Expression of Interest application to the Future High
Street Fund and identify additional support that may be beneficial, from the
High Streets Task Force.
A 45 minute town/city centre site tour with a High Streets Task Force
Expert who will conduct a snapshot analysis based on repositioning,
reinventing, rebranding and restructuring approaches.

7.35

After the visit we will receive a visit report summarising the Expert’s findings –
including their recommendation for the strategy that is likely to be most
effective at “unlocking your place potential”.

7.36

It is expected the support provided through the ‘unlocking your place potential’
visit will assist in the development of an expression of interest for later rounds
of the Future High Street Fund’ if appropriate.

Page 103

This page is intentionally left blank

Cheadle Town Centre Projects Governance Structure
Staffordshire Moorlands
Cabinet

Service Delivery
Select Committee

Transformation Board

Alliance Leadership Team





Chief Executive
Executive Director
(Place)
Executive Director
(People)
S.151 Officer




Alliance Leadership Team
Alliance Management Team

Stakeholder Panel











District Councillors –
Cheadle West (Chair),
Cheadle South East,
Cheadle North East
Team Cheadle,
SM Chamber of Commerce
TOR
Cheadle Town Council
Creative Cheadle
Cheadle Historical Society
Business Representative
Support Staffordshire·
Destination Staffordshire
Archdiocese of Birmingham
(responsible for St. Giles)

Project Delivery Group

Town Centre Project Delivery Board
 Executive Director (Place)
 Chair of Stakeholder Panel
 Staffordshire County Council
 Clinical Commissioning Group
Supported by:
 Head of Regeneration
 Head of Finance
 Head of Legal
 Project Manager

Project Delivery Group

TOR

Page 105

Project Delivery Group

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.5
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
6 October 2020

TITLE:

Appointment to Staffordshire Destination
Management and Partnership Board

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Leader

CONTACT OFFICER:

Linden Vernon - Senior Officer Governance
and Member Support

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific
Appendices Attached – None

1.

Reason for the Report:

1.1

The purpose of the report is to re-appoint a representative of the Council to
the Staffordshire Destination Management and Partnership Board.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Cabinet approves the appointment of Councillor Mike Bowen to the
Staffordshire Destination Management and Partnership Board.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

Councillor Hayley Plimley was appointed to the Staffordshire Destination
Management and Partnership Board at Annual Council on 16 May 2019. Due
to a change in circumstances it is no longer possible for Councillor Plimley to
fulfil this role. In order to maintain representation on this outside body it is
recommended that Cabinet re-appoints to this position.

3.2

In accordance with the Council’s procedure rules ad-hoc in-year appointments
to outside bodies are determined by Cabinet.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Effective relationship with strategic partners.

Page 107

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

The Cabinet may consider other councillors to be the Council’s representative
for this appointment.
Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and Background Papers

Contact details

None

Linden Vernon
Senior Officer Governance and Member Support
Tel: 01538 395613
Email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 108

Agenda Item 10.1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
6 October 2020
TITLE:

Recent and proposed changes to the
Planning System including the Planning
White Paper 2020

PORTFOLIO:

Councillor Wain – Planning, Development
and Property

OFFICER:

Ben Haywood – Head of Development
Services

WARDS:

Whole District
Appendices Attached



1.

APPENDIX 1 Changes to the current planning system implications and
comments summary table.
APPENDIX 2 White Paper Proposals, implications and comments summary
table.
Reason for the Report:
1. To appraise Members of:
a. recent changes to the planning system enacted in the Business and
Planning Act 2020
b. proposed changes to the current Planning System as set out in the
Government Consultation Document Published 6 August 2020
c. proposed changes as set out in the White Paper “Planning for the
Future” which was published for consultation by Government on 6th
August 2020
2. To consider the Council’s response to the consultations.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That Members note the report and delegate authority to the Executive Director
(Place) to prepare a final response to both consultations based on the attached
summary tables, incorporating any comments of the Service Delivery Overview
and Scrutiny Panel and Cabinet and to submit them to Ministry of Housing,
Communities & Local Government before the end of the consultation periods.

Page 109

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Business and Planning Bill received Royal Assent on 22 July 2020. It
introduces a series of changes to planning legislation intended to help
businesses, particularly in the hard-hit hospitality and construction sectors, to
get back to work safely and quickly. The key changes are:








3.2

The implications of the changes include:








3.3

An automatic extension to planning permissions and listed building consents
which have lapsed or are due to lapse between 23 March and 31 December
2020.
A temporary, fast track deemed consent route for developers to apply to local
planning authorities to vary existing conditions, or the details submitted
under a condition, that limit construction site working hours.
The previous Class A1 (shops), A2 (financial and professional services), A3
(restaurants and cafés) and Class B1 (business), are to be grouped together
into a new Use Class – Class E (commercial, business and service) along
with uses such as gyms, nurseries and health centres (previously Class D1)
and non-residential institutions, such as assembly and leisure (previously
Class D2)
New permitted development rights are being introduced to extend buildings
upwards to create new homes and living space subject to the developer
applying to the Local Planning Authority for “prior approval” of certain
aspects of the development such as design. However, the LPA cannot call
into question the “principle” of the development.
Similar provisions are being introduced to allow vacant and redundant freestanding commercial and light industrial premises, and residential blocks of
flats, to be demolished and replaced with new residential units.

Reduction in the number of planning applications but potential increase in
the number of prior approval and other applications.
Possible reduction in planning fee income
Economic benefits for developers and associated construction industry in
the area and those looking to establish new businesses
Potential to boost housing land supply but may slow delivery
Less opportunity for consultation with the public, Parishes and Councillors
Positive and negative impacts on the vitality and viability of town centres
Limiting the number of factors which can be taking into account when
considering applications for redevelopment of buildings for residential or
“building-up”. In particular loss of ability to control the “principle” of
development

The consultation “Changes to the Current Planning System” sets out proposals
for measures to improve the effectiveness of the current planning system. The
4 main proposals are:

Page 110






changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need
securing of First Homes through developer contributions in the short term
until the transition to a new system
supporting small and medium-sized builders by temporarily lifting the small
sites threshold below which developers do not need to contribute to
affordable housing
extending the current Permission in Principle to major development

3.4

The proposed changes to the current planning system will update the standard
methodology for assessing housing requirements. Consideration of the size of
existing housing stock and the long term affordability over the past ten years will
now be considered in determining needs. This has the effect of increasing
housing needs in areas with an existing large stock and/or affordability issues.
Plans for new “First Homes” are also proposed alongside increasing the
threshold for affordable housing contributions. This will result in fewer affordable
homes being developed in the district that meet the needs as assessed in our
Strategic Housing Market Assessment.

3.5

The White Paper, titled “Planning for the Future”, sets out a series of high-level
reforms to streamline and modernise the planning process. Key changes
include:











3.5

A significant emphasis on design and sustainability,
Changes to the system of developer contributions to infrastructure,
Change to a zonal planning system setting out whether planning permission
for certain developments will be granted on a given site. Under the
proposals, land will be designated into three categories: Growth areas
Renewal areas and Protected areas
National development management policies with local plans focusing on site
or area specific issues.
Simplified local plan process with single statutory sustainability test.
Penalties for LPAs that fail to adopt plans within 30 months.
Standard methodology for assessing local housing need that is binding, with
the intention of creating greater certainty. Need to be assessed over
minimum period of 10 years, rather than the current 5 years for housing.
Local Plans should be visual and based on the latest digital technology,
Raising affordable housing thresholds
Strengthening planning enforcement powers

Key issues and concerns include:







Increased certainty but potentially less flexibility
Loss of protection for some areas
More streamlined processes but risks around community engagement and
ability to influence at a local level.
Positive move towards use of technology but risk of moving towards
automated decision making and loss of democratic control and flexibility.
Significant concerns around binding standard housing methodology due to
inability to factor in local constraints
Scrapping the 5 year supply requirement is welcomed.

Page 111








Removal of time extensions risks more refusals, appeals and resubmissions
and may lengthen process.
30 month deadline for local plans raises significant resource issues
particularly for the Alliance which is responsible for 2 local plans. This again
also raises local engagement issues.
Emphasis on design is to be welcomed but how is “beautiful” defined and
how this fits with creating “certainty”.
Emphasis on climate change and sustainability to be welcomed but
concerns about how this would work in practice, impact on protected assets
and whether targets are ambitious enough.
Concerns about national levy and local viability issues as well as raising of
threshold for contributions. Issues around flexibility and setting spending
priorities
Unclear whether “in-kind” delivery of affordable housing on site would be
mandatory

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Council’s Corporate Plan identifies that our key priorities include “ High
quality development and building control with an “open for business approach””

5.

Analysis and Summary of Changes
Business and Planning Act 2020

5.1

The Business and Planning Bill received Royal Assent on 22 July 2020. It
introduces a series of changes to planning legislation intended to help
businesses, particularly in the hard-hit hospitality and construction sectors, to
get back to work safely and quickly.

5.2

Extending Planning Permissions





5.3

The Act provides for an automatic extension to planning permissions and listed
building consents which have lapsed or are due to lapse between 23 March and
31 December 2020.
This extension will be to 1 May 2021.
The extension will apply automatically for permissions and consents which are
extant in between the measures coming into force on 19 August 2020 and 31
December 2020.
Any planning permissions which have lapsed since 23 March 2020 can be
reinstated and extended subject to an Additional Environmental Approval.
Construction Site Hours




A temporary, fast track deemed consent route for developers to apply to local
planning authorities to vary existing conditions, or the details submitted under a
condition, that limit construction site working hours.
Came into force on 28 July 2020.

Page 112













5.4

Local authorities have 14 calendar days excluding public and bank holidays to
consider such applications. If they are not determined in this period they will be
given a deemed consent.
If an application is approved, this will temporarily amend planning restrictions
on construction working hours until 1 April 2021, unless another earlier date has
been requested by the applicant or decided upon by the local planning authority,
with the agreement of the applicant.
There is no requirement for publicity or consultation although we have decided
to notify
o Parish/Town Council
o Ward Members
o Environmental Health
And give them 10 days to respond.
The guidance says local planning authorities should not refuse applications to
extend working hours until 9pm, Monday to Saturday without very compelling
reasons. In some cases, such as in areas without residential properties,
extending working hours beyond this, including allowing 24-hour working where
appropriate, may be justified.
If the authority wish to propose minor changes to the proposed hours these will
need to have been agreed in writing by the applicant
In considering the application the LPA can take into account:
o need for proposed extended working hours as a result of social
distancing;
o any mitigating measures to be put in place to avoid significant impacts
on businesses and the health and quality of life of those people in the
near vicinity;
o the original reasons for any existing limits on construction working hours,
o the extent of additional working, compared to current permitted hours,
and degree to which this variation is expected to result in local impacts
that cannot be mitigated.
The LPA will need to give careful consideration to applications which are
o in proximity to businesses or community uses which are particularly sensitive
to noise, dust and vibration e.g. hospitals, or places of worship,
o made in relation to sites in close proximity to residential areas where the
request for changing hours is likely to have a significant impact on health,
o made in relation to EIA development
o made in relation to development which was subject to a Habitats Regulations
Assessment
o for development adjacent to Sites of Special Scientific Interest,
Where an adverse impact can be demonstrated with regard to the above a
refusal of the application could be justified
Use Classes & Changes Of Use




The changes come into effect from 1 September 2020.
In simple terms, the previous Class A1 (shops), A2 (financial and professional
services), A3 (restaurants and cafés) and Class B1 (business), are to be
grouped together into a new Use Class – Class E (commercial, business and
service).

Page 113







5.5

In addition, uses such as gyms, nurseries and health centres (previously Class
D1) and non-residential institutions, such as assembly and leisure (previously
Class D2) are also now included within the new Class E.
This means that with effect from 1 September, building or land currently within
Classes A1-A3, B1, D1 and D2 use will no longer require planning permission
to be changed for another use within the new Class E.
However, there are some exceptions.
o Former Class D1 and D2 uses that are not included within the new Class E
(and will therefore continue to require a change of use permission) include:
o Small-scale shops (up to 280sqm, located 1000 metres or more from
another retail unit), schools, libraries and art galleries, swimming pools,
skating rinks and areas for outdoor sports. These are now included within
two new Use Classes (F1 and F2).
o Drinking establishments (formerly Class A4) and hot food takeaways
(formerly Class A5), together with cinemas, concert, dance and bingo halls
(formerly within Class D2) are removed from the defined use classes,
and will therefore require permission for any material change of use.
o Where relevant, any Article 4 Directions imposed by an LPA and controlling
changes of use within specific areas will remain in force.
o Restrictive conditions already in place through relevant permissions (and
S106 agreements) will remain in force.
o Where relevant, planning permission will still be required for external
alteration
Building Up (Flats)









5.6

New permitted development rights are being introduced to extend buildings
upwards to create new homes and living space.
From 1 August 2020 purpose-built freestanding blocks of flats of three storeys
or more can be extended upwards by up to 2 additional storeys to create new
homes, up to a height of 30m.
However the applicant must apply for prior approval of the authority as to—
(a) transport and highways impacts of the development;
(b) air traffic and defence asset impacts of the development;
(c) contamination risks in relation to the building;
(d) flooding risks in relation to the building;
(e) the external appearance of the building;
(f) the provision of adequate natural light in all habitable rooms of the new
dwellinghouses;
(g) impact on the amenity of the existing building and neighbouring premises
including overlooking, privacy and the loss of light; and
Applications must be publicised by site notice, & neighbour letter for 21 days
The development must not begin before the receipt by the applicant from the
local
planning authority of a written notice giving their prior approval.
Building Up (Other Buildings inc. Houses)



A second phase of new permitted development rights to build upwards allow up
to 2 additional storeys on free standing blocks, up to a height of 30 metres, and

Page 114











5.7

on buildings in a terrace (of 2 or more buildings) in certain commercial uses
come into force on 31 August 2020.
They also allow up to 2 additional storeys on existing houses, detached or in a
terrace, to create new self-contained homes or additional living space up to a
height of 18 metres (7m over existing).
Single storey homes will be able to add 1 additional storey (up to 3.5m in height
over existing).
Semi-detached and terraces will not be able to exceed 3.5m above the height
of the attached dwelling.
There are a number of other limitations on materials and roof pitch (which must
match existing), no side windows etc.
Prior approvals of the Authority will be required as to—
(i)
impact on the amenity of any adjoining premises including
overlooking, privacy and the loss of light;
(ii)
the external appearance of the dwellinghouse, including the design
and architectural features of— (aa) the principal elevation of the
dwellinghouse, and (bb) any side elevation of the dwellinghouse that
fronts a highway;
(iii) air traffic and defence asset impacts of the development; and
Applications must be publicised by site notice, & neighbour letter for 21 days
The development must not begin before the receipt by the applicant from the
local planning authority of a written notice giving their prior approval
Demolition and Rebuilding as Residential






5.8

From 31 August 2020 new PD Right allows vacant and redundant free-standing
commercial and light industrial premises, and residential blocks of flats, to be
demolished and replaced with new residential units.
At the same time the right will allow up to 2 storeys to be added to the height of
the original building, up to a max of 18 metres.
The regulations in respect of this don’t appear to have been published yet but it
will be subject again to prior approval and it is anticipated that the process and
matters which the LPA can consider will be similar to those above.
Extended opening of holiday parks, caravan parks and campsites





Government has issued a Written Ministerial Statement to emphasise that
planning enforcement is a discretionary activity, and local planning authorities
should not seek to undertake enforcement action which would unnecessarily
restrict the ability of holiday parks, caravan parks and campsites to extend their
open season.
Local planning authorities should also prioritise decision making for applications
to vary relevant planning conditions, and take account of the economic benefits
resulting from extended opening.

Consultation: Changes to the Current Planning System
5.9

This consultation sets out proposals for measures to improve the effectiveness
of the current planning system. The 4 main proposals are:

Page 115

changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need
securing of First Homes through developer contributions in the short term until
the transition to a new system
 supporting small and medium-sized builders by temporarily lifting the small sites
threshold below which developers do not need to contribute to affordable
housing
 extending the current Permission in Principle to major development



White Paper “Planning for the Future”
5.10

The White Paper, titled “Planning for the Future”, sets out a series of high-level
reforms to streamline and modernise the planning process. It has a significant
emphasis on design and sustainability, and seeks to improve the system of
developer contributions to infrastructure, and ensure more land is available for
development.

5.11

The White Paper contains 24 proposals set out under 3 “pillars” as follows:
Pillar 1: planning for development
Pillar 2: planning for beautiful and sustainable places
Pillar 3: planning for infrastructure and connected places

5.12

The main changes include:
 A fundamental change to a zonal planning system setting out whether
planning permission for certain developments will be granted on a given site.
Under the proposals, land will be designated into three categories:
o Growth areas: Proposals for new homes, hospitals, schools, shops
and offices will be automatically allowed.
o Renewal areas: Proposals for development, largely on urban and
brownfield sites, will be permitted through a prior approval system.
o Protected areas: Development on Areas of Outstanding Natural
Beauty and National Parks will continue to be restricted.
 Development management policies established at national scale and Local
Plans to focus on identifying areas for development and protection.
Development management policy contained in the plan would be restricted
to site or area-specific requirements,. The National Planning Policy
Framework would become the primary source of policies for development
management.
 The Local Plan process would be streamlined and subject to a single
statutory “Sustainable Development” test, replacing the existing test of
soundness, updating requirements for assessments and abolishing the Duty
to Cooperate.
 Changes to the standard methodology for assessing local housing need. At
present, the system allows housing requirements to be constantly
challenged through the Local Plan process and at Appeal by developers,
leading to delays in plan preparation and determining applications. The new
methodology would create a standard requirement that is binding, with the
intention of creating greater certainty. The new standard method would set
out development needs such as homes, businesses and community facilities
for a minimum period of 10 years, rather than the current 5 years for
housing.

Page 116















Local Plans should be visual and map-based, standardised, based on the
latest digital technology, and supported by a new template.
A pledge to create a system that will ensure local housing plans are
developed and agreed within 30 months. This deadline would be driven by
legislation with sanctions for local authorities that fail to meet this timescale.
Increased emphasis on design and delivering “beautiful places”, including
more design guidance and design codes to be prepared locally with
community involvement with emphasis on local character.
Promotion of all new homes to achieve a zero carbon ready status with
without the need for costly retrofitting.
A simpler national levy to replace the current system of CIL and S106
providing more certainty around financial obligations.
A review of affordable housing thresholds increasing the threshold above
which affordable housing is required. The reasoning being that this would
potentially make more sites viable and would speed up the pace of delivery
by removing the need for negotiation.
A rules-based system that makes it clearer to understand development
requirements for a scheme and allocation, to reduce the number of planning
cases that go to appeal instead of generalised policies
Securing of First Homes for local people, key workers and first-time buyers
at a 30% discount through developer contributions in the short-term until
transition to a new system.
Investing in people and skills to deliver the planning system
Strengthening planning enforcement powers and sanctions available to local
planning authorities to ensure they support the new planning system.
Introduction of more powers to address intentional unauthorised
development, consider higher fines, and look to ways of supporting more
enforcement activity.
Extending the current Permission in Principle to major developments.

5.13

Each of the proposals are detailed in full in the table at Appendix 2 of this report.
The White Paper is inviting views on the proposed changes and poses a series
of 26 questions. It is recommended that a response to these questions is drafted
based on the comments, implications and observations within the table along
with any further views which the Scrutiny Panel and Cabinet / ALT have
following their discussion and consideration of this report.

6.

Implications
Business and Planning Act 2020
Workload and Financial

6.1

Removal of the need for planning applications to renew lapsed consents, and
for certain changes of use, will reduce workloads slightly and along with them
some reduction in Fee Income. No fee is changeable for the fast track
applications to vary construction site hours. However, arguably, such
applications do not represent lost income as such requests would probably not
have been made prior to COVID-19. Nevertheless they represent an additional
workload burden.

Page 117

6.2

Although planning applications will not be required for “building up” or demolition
and rebuilding as residential, “prior approval” applications will be needed and
therefore no change is envisaged in terms of workload. Furthermore fees will
be payable for the new prior approval applications. For example, the fee for a
prior approval application under Part 20 (construction of new dwellings) where
the number of new dwellings proposed is 50 or fewer is £334 for each new
dwelling; but where the number of new dwellings proposed by the development
exceeds 50, the fee is £16,525, plus an additional £100 for each new dwelling
in excess of 50, subject to a maximum in total of £300,000. By comparison
standard planning application fees for dwellings are £462 per dwelling up to 50
dwellings. Where the development exceeds 50 dwellings £22,859 and an
additional £138 per dwelling in excess of 50, subject to a maximum total of
£300,000. Therefore some loss of revenue could be expected on this basis, but
this is on the assumption that the same proposal would have been forthcoming
under the previous regime and that the changes have not incentivised the
development to come forward in the first instance which case it could be
regarded as additional income.
Workforce

6.3

Overall it is considered that any reduction in planning applications numbers and
associated fees are likely to be cancelled out by an increase prior approval
applications and fees therefore no significant workforce implications are
identified at this time. However, as always staffing levels within the team will
need to be kept under review to ensure that we are responding to the needs and
demands of the service and budgets.
Legal

6.4

The Council must ensure that it complies with and operates in accordance with
the new legislation and regulations to ensure that it remains free from legal
challenge and makes planning decisions in a lawful manner. Work has already
been put in hand to amend processes and procedures such as planning
validation and staff training to ensure that we are able to accept and process
correctly new types of application.

6.5

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that there are 3 aspects
to sustainable development (social, economic and environmental). The
automatic extension to planning consents is positive from a housing land supply
perspective in that consents will remain extant and therefore in the Council’s 5
year supply for longer. However, it may encourage developers to delay
commencement and therefore slow delivery. It will also mean that the Council
does not have the opportunity to reassess any changes in circumstances or
policy prior to renewing lapsed consents.

6.6

The fast-track applications to vary working hours are positive from an economic
development point of view and restarting the construction industry. However,
there are potential implications for the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and

Page 118

less opportunity for potentially affected residents, Parishes and members to
comment on changes.
6.7

The changes to the use classes are positive from an economic development
point of view in that it will allow new businesses to establish or existing ones to
expand without going over the hurdle of planning applications with associated
cost and time implications. It takes into account the changing shape of town
centres and the movement away from retail. For example, it would allow a
vacant shop in a high street to be converted to a café or gym without planning
permission. However, it would also allow an office building or light industrial unit
on an out of town business park to become a shop, for example, which could be
detrimental to the vitality and viability of the town centre and could result in the
loss of valuable employment space.

6.8

The new permitted development rights to allow buildings to be extended
upwards and rebuilt as to create additional dwellings would be beneficial from a
housing land supply point of view. It would also help to bring back into use
derelict and redundant brownfield sites. The Local Planning Authority would still
retain control over some aspects of the scheme such as design and amenity
considerations. However, they would not be able to call into question the
principle of the development. For example, there would be no opportunity to
challenge the sustainability of redeveloping a redundant building in the open
countryside, remote from shops and services, as large residential development.
Similarly, for example, under the policies in the NPPF, extensions to properties
in the Green Belt are only currently granted planning permission if they are not
disproportionate to the original dwelling and maintains the openness of the
Green Belt. Adding 2 floors to a property under permitted development rights
could result in a disproportionate extension and may be harmful to openness
but if it were constructed under permitted development rights, the Council could
not refuse it on these grounds. This has a significant implication for this Council’s
area, as substantial amount of which lies within Green Belt.
Changes to the Current Planning System

6.9

The proposed changes to the current planning system will update the standard
methodology for assessing housing requirements. Consideration of the size of
existing housing stock and the long term affordability over the past ten years will
now be considered in determining needs. This has the effect of increasing
housing needs in areas with an existing large stock and/or affordability issues.
Plans for new “First Homes are also proposed alongside increasing the
threshold for affordable housing contributions. This will result in fewer affordable
homes being developed in the district that meet the needs as assessed in our
Strategic Housing Market Assessment. A full analysis of the implications of the
changes is provided in the Table at Appendix 1.
Planning White Paper

6.10

A full analysis of the implications of the changes is provided in the Table at
Appendix 2. However, key issues and concerns include:

Page 119











Increased certainty but potentially less flexibility
Loss of protection for some areas
More streamlined processes but risks around community engagement and
ability to influence at a local level.
Positive move towards use of technology but risk of moving towards
automated decision making and loss of democratic control and flexibility.
Significant concerns around binding standard housing methodology due to
inability to factor in local constraints
Scrapping the 5 year supply requirement is welcomed.
Removal of time extensions risks more refusals, appeals and resubmissions
and may lengthen process.
30 month deadline for local plans raises significant resource issues
particularly for the Alliance which is responsible for 2 local plans. This again
also raises local engagement issues.
Emphasis on design is to be welcomed but how is “beautiful” defined and
how this fits with creating “certainty”.
Neil Rodgers
Executive Director (Place)

Contact Details
Mark James
Principal Planning
Officer
Mark.james@staffsm
oorlands.gov.uk

Ben Haywood
Head of Development
Services
Ben.haywood@staffsmoorland
s.gov.uk

07976 753404

01538 394500 ext 4924

Page 120

APPENDIX 1
Changes to the current planning system – summary of proposals and possible implications
Summary of proposal
Possible implications
The standard methodology for assessing housing numbers in strategic plans
New method to ensure delivery of 300,000 homes per year (140,000 more Using existing stock in the calculation is proposed to “ensure that all areas,
than in Local Plans currently).
as a minimum, are contributing a share of the national total, proportionate
to the size of their current housing market.” However, this approach
Achieve a better distribution of homes where homes are identified in more assumes that areas can continue to grow at a rate proportionate to their
high-demand areas and in emerging demand areas across the country
existing stock – this may not always be possible, particularly in areas
constrained by topography, national parks etc. This is a concern.
(such as the Northern Powerhouse).
Application of the most up to date data. The size of existing housing stock
and affordability over the past 10 years are now to be considered

Page 121

Current method

However, unlike the White Paper proposals, this approach would still
enable local authorities to seek to deliver lower housing numbers through
local plans where justified.

Proposed method
Consideration of the affordability of housing over a 10 year period is likely
to provide a better indication of the issue. However, this approach is
predicated on the view that increasing housing supply will improve
affordability. There is little evidence of this locally.
The removal of the cap in the increase of housing required is a significant
concern.
The estimated impact of the new methodology is set out below.
Staffs Moorlands
Local Plan
requirement
320

Average
delivery (last 3
years)
146

Current
standard
method
185

New standard
method
255

The new methodology would increase the housing requirement in
comparison with the current method but would result in a reduction from
the new Local Plan requirement. Please note that the Local Plan
requirement is based on the approach set out in the 2012 NPPF and
guidance which pre-dates the current standard method. Any new
requirement would be considered as part of the next Local Plan review.
Delivering First Homes and supporting small/medium developers
A minimum of 25 per cent of all affordable housing units secured through
developer contributions should be First Homes. This will be a national
threshold.

Page 122

Initially secured through S106, but in the future through the new
Infrastructure Levy as set out in the White Paper.
Planning application should seek to capture the same amount of value as
would be captured under the local authority’s up-to-date published policy.
For any remaining affordable housing that is viable (and required) under
local policy after provision for First Homes, there are 2 options:
1. Follow local policy
2. Negotiate a tenure mix for remaining 75% of units
First Homes exception sites policy to be introduced
Increased thresholds for affordable housing contributions to a minimum of
40 or 50 dwellings.

This would reduce the amount of traditional affordable rent or shared
ownership homes delivered through registered providers. This runs
counter to the identified housing needs identified in the SHMA and Local
Plan.
Potentially this could mean we would no longer be able to deliver any
shared ownership housing through planning gain. The government are
prioritising home ownership over the traditional types of affordable
housing such as rent and shared ownership which generally meets the
needs of lower income or benefit dependent households.
Increasing the site threshold to 40 or 50 dwellings would significantly
reduce the number of sites where an affordable housing contribution
would be taken. This would impact considerable on delivering affordable
housing in some of our rural communities where sites of 40 or 50 units
would be unacceptable.

APPENDIX 2
Planning White Paper – summary of proposal and possible implications
Summary of proposal
Pillar One – Planning for Development
Proposal 1 – Local Plans to identify three types of land:

Possible implications

Growth areas - suitable for substantial development such as urban
extensions, new settlements or key re-development sites. Site would have
outline consent (see proposal 5)

The Local Plan already identifies; allocations for development where the
principle of development for specified uses has been agreed, settlement
boundaries for town and larger villages within which the principle of
development is acceptable and areas of countryside/green belt/local green
space etc. which are protected.

Renewal areas - suitable for development such as existing built up areas
suitable for small developments and infill. A statutory presumption is
favour of development would apply here.

Page 123

Protected areas – where development would be limited and subject to
planning permission such as green belt, conservation areas, national parks
and open countryside

The principle of classifying land is not new.

What the White Paper seeks to achieve in this respect is to standardize and
simplify the designations applied across England to enable better data
analysis at a national level and improve transparency.
The inclusion of the open countryside within the “protected” areas is to be
welcomed.
It is not clear if the same degree of protection would be given across areas
protected for different reasons. For example, green belt has historically
had stronger protection than the open countryside.

Proposal 2 – Development management policies established at national
scale and an altered role for Local Plans.
Local Plan policies to focus on area or site specific requirements only
supported by design codes and guidance. Neighbourhood plan would also
provide design codes.

(See proposal 5 for related comments)
Are “machine readable policies” the first step towards computers
determining simple applications?
It is acknowledged that in some instances, Local Plan policies overlap with
national policy. This would save time and simplify both plan preparation
and consideration of applications.
However, scope for local discretion for some policies should be allowed in
order for Councils to address matters which may be corporate priorities.

Generic policies such as those relating to flood risk, heritage or retail would
be provided at a national level.
Policies will be “machine readable”
Alternative options are allowing Council to adopt local policies in
exceptional circumstances or simply ensuring that local policies do not
duplicate national policy.
Proposal 3 - Local Plans should be subject to a single statutory
“sustainable development” test, replacing the existing tests of soundness.

Whilst change to a zonal based system with clear cut “yes” or “no” policies
would help to create certainty for developers and decision makers it would
remove the subjectivity and judgement that developers as well as local
authorities rely upon to “argue a case” for or against a particular
development dependent upon the material considerations surrounding the
circumstances of a particular case.
Streamlined requirements for preparing and passing examination Local
Plans are welcome in principle.

Page 124

An alternative option would be to make the tests for Local Plans to pass
examination less onerous.

Little detail available at present to determine if replacement requirements
are better.

More streamlined plan making - Sustainability Appraisals, Duty to
Cooperate to be replaced. Less emphasis evidence to support deliverability
of plan.

Risk that Local Plans are to be prepared at a higher level (future unitary or
county level) in areas with cross boundary issues?

Consideration to be given to the appropriate scale at which to prepare
Local Plan with strategic issues.
More focus on digital Local Plans
Proposal 4 – A standard method for establishing housing requirement
figures
This would release more land where affordability is worst and take account
of development constraints with a view to achieving the Government’s
aspiration of developing 300,000 homes a year.
Builds on current standard methodology with consideration of
affordability, size of existing settlements and constraints such as green
belt, flood risk and national parks.

Improved access to Local Plans and availability of digital data is a positive
move.

This is a significant concern
Binding requirements based on a national formula are unlikely to
accurately reflect local constraints.
Landscape, topography, infrastructure and the proximity to the national
park are examples of constraints that warrant detailed consideration at a
local level.

Differs from current system of identifying local housing need in that “it
would be binding” to “drive greater land release”

Consideration of the size of existing settlements would appear to be
predicated on a assumption that towns can continue to grow at the same
rate based on past trends

Five year housing land supply requirement abolished.
Housing Delivery Test to be retained

A binding housing requirement which does not reflect local constraints
could lead to unsuitable sites being developed.
This approach runs counter to the ethos of the Localism Act which
scrapped regionally set requirements.
Scrapping the 5 year housing land supply requirement is welcome as the
Housing Delivery Test already proves an incentive to LPAs to boost supply.

Page 125

Proposal 5 – outline approval granted within “growth” areas. Detailed
permission then via either reformed reserved matters, Local
Development Orders or Development Consent Order
Renewal areas = “presumption in favour. Permission granted by; automatic
consent for pre-specified forms of development (“fast-track to beauty”),
full application (but faster process), or Local Development Order,
Neighbourhood Development Order.
Protected – development requires full permission and judged against NPPF
policies.
Means of allowing interested parties to raise concerns where the principle
of development is already agreed is to be determined.
Proposal 6 – faster decisions and greater use of technology

Alternative option for establishing housing requirements is preferable – i.e.
local decision on housing numbers based on a standard method. However,
the 5 year land supply regime would be retained.
The “growth” designations have more teeth than current allocations as
they grant outline consent. Higher stakes earlier in the process and even
more contentious. Much greater detail and expense required to justify
growth designations by Councils and developers. This may make the
shortened timeframe for the preparation of Local Plan even more
ambitious.
Less opportunity for Councillors, residents and other consultees to engage
with the process once areas have been designated for growth or renewal
We know that historically is has been harder to encourage communities to
engage in the plan making process than when an application has been
submitted.
Providing growth areas with automatic outline permission could reduce
planning fee income
Fewer applications determined by Councillors. Anti-democratic?

Firm deadlines for the determination of applications (13 or 8 weeks) – no
more time extensions
Machine readable data and new software which “will help automate
routine processes, such as knowing whether new applications are within
the rules, which will support faster and more certain decision-making”
Standardisation of supporting data
Delegation of detailed planning decisions to officers where the principle of
development has been established

Aspiration to speed up decisions is welcome but it should not come at the
expense of proper consideration of proposals. Removal of the option for
time extensions will result in a return to applications which are found to be
unacceptable on a point which can be easily rectified simply being refused
in order to meet statutory timescales rather than agreeing an extension
and achieving a positive outcome. This in turn means that the developer
must either withdraw to avoid a refusal or resubmit an amended
application or appeal following a refusal. This would result in lengthening
the process and increase the costs to the developer for gaining an approval
and mean that the LPA has to deal with more resubmitted applications
which do not attract a planning fee.

Automatic refunds if applications are determined late

Page 126

“The delegation of detailed planning decisions to planning officers where
the principle of development has been established, as detailed matters for
consideration should be principally a matter for professional planning
judgment”
Proposal 7 – interactive web based map standard for planning
documents.

The beginning of automated planning decisions? Risk that decisions based
solely on data may result in poor quality develop without the scope for
human scrutiny?
Automatic planning fee refunds for late decisions may lead to rushed
decisions and poor quality development or more refusals and increase in
appeals and resubmissions (see above).
The aim of this proposal is welcome. Further detailed required to
determine full implications.

Model templates for Local Plans
Will enable a digital register of planning policies – more transparent,
accessible and efficient.
Proposal 8 – streamlined, more engaging plan making
30 month deadline for local plans

Resourcing the development of a Local Plan within 30 months is a major
concern. This issue is particularly acute within the Alliance which is
responsible for 2 separate local plans.

6 months – call for sites, public engagement of where development should
go and what it should look like

Currently where a site is allocated in plan, a promoter/developer does a
minimal amount of work to promote the site for allocation. The new

12 months – prepare plan and produces evidence
6 weeks – submit plan to SoS with statement on why the plan is
appropriate and simultaneously publish plan for public engagement
9 months – examination, inspector considers if 3 categories shown in the
plan are “sustainable” and makes binding changes if necessary. People who
submit comments have a right to be heard (face-face, video,phone or in
writing)
6 Weeks – Local Plan map, key and text are finalized and come into force

Page 127

Mandatory deadlines – 30 month from legislation being brought into force
OR 42 months (if plan adopted with past 3 years or if it has been submitted
to SoS)
Plan reviews at least every 5 years or face intervention (this would be
based on housing need and local issues)
Alternative Options – no automatic right to be heard at examination OR no
examinations (self assessment by LPAs with PINs auditing some each year

planning system requires the promoter/developer and/or Council to
undertake a considerable amount of work (akin to that required for an
outline permission application) to promote the site, the issues being:
•
High risk for developer/promoter as the outlay on project
development provides no guarantee of a site’s allocation in the Local Plan.
A promoter/developer would wish to see a site allocated before spending
considerable sums in its planning.
•
Councils are expected to deliver a Local Plan in 30 months,
masterplanning and consultation being front loaded, with details for
allocated growth areas are required to be included in line with an outline
permission. This raises a resourcing issue.
•
As the emphasis is on providing the detail required for each
allocated site, additional engagement will be required from infrastructure
providers. This is a significant pressure given that all LPAs are likely to be
developing local plans on a similar timetable.
•
EIA (albeit in a simplified form) may identify the site
constraints/issues and mitigation, but how does this get delivered in the
timeframe proposed for the development of a local plan?
•
Many LPAs do not have the resources/expertise to masterplan. In
past instances, LPAs have been criticised by PINS for piggybacking on
developers’ process/masterplans. Councils may also not have the expertise
to counter developers’ proposals.
No opportunity for consultees to comment on a draft plan is likely to lead
to a large increase in outstanding objections at the examination stage.

Proposal 9 – retain neighbourhood plans with strong focus on digital data
as with local plans.

The options presented to remove the right for objectors to appear at
examination is a further erosion of public participation and likely to create
a higher risk of challenge
This could undermine the aspirations for many neighbourhood plans if the
classification of land into growth, renewal or protected areas is dealt with
at the local plan level only. Would this leave neighbourhood plans to focus
solely on design?

Explore scope for neighbourhood plans for smaller areas such as individual
streets

Proposal 10 – stronger emphasis on build out of permissions.

Neighbourhood plans for smaller areas would increase the number of plans
that Councils would need to support and should be accompanied by
additional financial support from Government.
The potential for multiple small scale neighbourhood plans across a
settlement may also complicate the development plan which is the
opposite of one of the aims of the White Paper – to simplify the planning
system.
Should the White Paper go further by introducing measures / incentives to
encourage developers to implement permissions more quickly?

Page 128

Masterplans and design codes to support variety of building types (as
recommended by the Letwin Review) to diversify supply and increase build
out rates
Pillar 2 - Planning for beautiful and sustainable places
Proposal 11 – Design expectations to be more visual and predictable.
Binding design codes and guidance.
Local documents to take account of national design guide, national design
code model and revised manual for streets

Stronger emphasis on good design is a positive move provided LPAs are
given the backing to insist on it.
The extent to which members of the community will wish to engage in
detailed design code for areas where the principle of development has
already been established is unclear.

Weight only given to local codes when input from the community has been
demonstrated
In the absence of local codes, the national guide will apply
Proposal 12 – new national body established to support design codes.
Each LPA to have a chief officer for design and place making

Support in developing design codes will be essential so a designated
national body is encouraged.

New body to assist LPA with design codes could operate on a similar basis
to Homes England or be based on existing design networks

The identification of chief officers will help to increase the profile of
planning and the importance of good design at a corporate level.

Proposal 13 – embed design aspirations within Homes England

Welcome news

The design and environmental objectives of Homes England will be
strengthened
Proposal 14- facst track for beauty to incentivise and accelerate
high quality development which reflects local character and preferences
by :

The Government wants less subjectivity in planning but the definition of
“beauty” is highly subjective. How is beauty defined? By who? It is a matter
of judgment and opinion.

-

Page 129

-

Updating NPPF to provide strong support for schemes which
accord with codes
In growth areas, require masterplans and site specific codes to be
agreed as a condition of the permission in principle with is granted
in the local plan – to be prepared by LPAs alongside or subsequent
to preparing local plans
In renewal areas, amend PD to allow popular and “replicable
designs”

Proposal 15 – update NPPF to support adaptation and mitigation of
climate change and environmental benefits.

Fast track development = no scope for making proposals even better
Standardisation does not equate to good design. LPAs will need to make
sure local design codes incorporate local distinctiveness to counter
developer standardisation of design process.
Difficult to resource design codes in parallel to preparation of local plans.
However, if codes are left until after the adoption of local plans, this will
delay development.
Re-skilling of planning officers required to provide more emphasis on
design?
Further detail required but the principle of proposal is good.

Update to clarify role that local, spatially-specific policies can continue to
play, such as in identifying important views, opportunities to improve
public access or places where renewable energy or woodland and forestry
creation could be accommodated
Proposal 16 – quicker assessments of environmental impacts
New regime for Sustainability Appraisal, Strategic Environmental
Assessment and Environmental Impact Assessment

Further detail required but the principle of proposal is good.

Separate consultation in the autumn with more detail.
Proposal 17 – protection of historic assets
Local Plans to identify heritage assets “as well as locally important features
such as protected views”
Update to NPPF to be more supportive of sympathetic change to support
climate change.
Better way of securing routine consents.
Proposal 18 – improved energy efficiency standards to support net-zero
by 2050

Page 130

Follow on from Future Homes Standard paper. More detail to be provided
by Government in the Autumn
From 2025, new homes to produce 75-80% less CO2. Homes to be zero
carbon ready with no need for retrofitting
More emphasis on monitoring and enforcement to ensure that high
standards are met.
Pillar Three - Planning for Infrastructure and Connected Places
Proposal 19 – Community Infrastructure Levy and S106 agreements to
reformed
A new consolidated levy would replace CIL and S106.
This would be based on a fixed-proportion of development value above
threshold – nationally set. National rate or area specific rates (still set
nationally).

Greater national support for measures to address climate change in the
historic environment is a positive move provided the correct safeguards to
retain character / historic value.
The protection of views should be treated with caution. It should be
clarified that this should only be an option in exceptional circumstances or
it may risk restrictive designations across swathes of otherwise suitable
development land being made in neighbourhood plans.
The Council should review further details of the proposed Future Homes
Standard when Government releases further details in the Autumn.
Is zero carbon by 2050 ambitious enough?
Will LPAs be able to set more ambitious requirements or will they be set
nationally as previously proposed?
Should these be incorporated into the building regulations rather than
planning and made mandatory?

The current CIL is based on the lowest common denominator so how would
a nationally set tariff work in lower value areas?
Concern whether sufficient funding would be collected to provide the
necessary infrastructure in areas of lower development value. The
Government should set out alternative means of infrastructure funding in
areas with a housing requirement but no / low levy income. (e.g. new HIF)

Levied at the point of occupation rather than on approval (as with CIL)
A value-based minimum threshold will be set below which the levy is not
charged, to prevent low viability development becoming unviable

Government propose that the infrastructure levy is levied at the point of
occupation rather than CIL which is levied on commencement. Would this
still create cashflow issues for the developer?

Councils will be able to borrow against projected future income from the
levy to enable infrastructure to be provided when needed.

If S106s are removed, how do LPAs deal with other elements which S106
agreements are also currently used to regulate i.e. transfer of land,
management of land/SuDs etc?

An alternative option is proposed to enable the levy to take taken up at the
discretion of local authorities with rates set locally. However, “there would
be a stronger incentive for local authorities to introduce the new Levy, as
they would not be able to use Section 106 planning obligations to secure
infrastructure or affordable housing”

More flexibility of spend once core infrastructure requirements are
satisfied. Spending decisions may be politically contentious.
The ability to borrow against future income is good in principle but carries
a risk that projected income is not realized (e.g. in the event of a housing
market crash).

Page 131

In two tier local authority areas, it is not clear which authority would be
able to borrow against future levy income. Currently, only district/borough
councils can charge the levy but significant infrastructure provision is
delivered by the county. Where would the risk of borrowing lie?
The alternative option proposed (discretionary levy uptake) is meaningless
if S106 is still to be abolished. This would leave the Council with no means
of supporting affordable housing or infrastructure.
Proposal 20 - The scope of the Infrastructure Levy could be extended
to capture changes of use through permitted development rights
This would capture changes of use which require planning permission, even
where there is no additional floorspace, and for some permitted
development rights including office to residential conversions and new
demolition and rebuild permitted development rights

(For implications regarding affordable housing, please see Proposal 21)
This can be supported

Exemptions for self/custom build housing would remain
Proposal 21 - the reformed Infrastructure Levy should deliver affordable
housing provision
No S106 for affordable housing. The levy would replace the current means
of contributions.
Aspiration to continue to deliver on-site affordable housing at current
levels (around 50% currently nationally). This would be secured through inkind delivery where required by an authority. The form and tenure of such
housing could be set by the local authority working with a provider.

Page 132

A provider of affordable housing could purchase the dwelling at a discount
from market rate, as now. However, rather than the discount being
secured through Section 106 planning obligations, it would instead
be considered as in-kind delivery of the Infrastructure Levy. This would
provide an incentive for on site delivery as the difference between
the price at which the unit was sold to the provider and the market price
would be offset from the final cash liability to the Levy.

We would need to ensure that delivery on site remains at the same level if
not higher through new system. Concern about loss of affordable housing
on smaller sites by raising thresholds. Thresholds have already been raised
in previous reforms.
In kind delivery on site? This would need to be made mandatory as few
developers would want affordable housing on site.
If financial contribution in form of levy was taken this would add additional
pressure to local authorities/ registered providers to deliver on alternative
sites. This might be challenging to implement, particularly with competition
from developers to purchase sites in areas of high demand
Ring-fencing for affordable housing is not mandatory. Difficult decisions to
be made by the Council in setting funding priorities? (E.g. Affordable
housing vs education vs health care…). Conflicting priorities may also arise
between district/borough council and county councils.

First Homes, which are sold by the developer direct to the customer at a
discount to market price, would offset the discount against the cash
liability.

In -kind delivery would have to be agreed at planning stage to enable
appropriate mix to be agreed. Proposal suggests that location on site
would be at developers discretion which would inevitable lead to them
being grouped together rather than mixed throughout the site.

In the event of a market fall, there could be scope to allow local authorities
to ‘flip’ a proportion of units back to market units which the developer can
sell, if Levy liabilities are insufficient to cover the value secured through inkind contributions.

We generally require affordable housing to be built to the Nationally
Described Space Standards and with a specific bedspace criteria. This is
normally higher than what is built on the open market. The proposal could
jeopardise the delivery of good quality affordable housing.

Local authorities could have an option to revert back to cash contributions
if no provider was willing to buy the homes due to their poor quality.

Positive that cascade to financial contribution is included but this won’t
stop developers reducing the standard of affordable homes. Some national
developers in high demand areas would rather have financial contributions

An alternative option would be to create a ‘first refusal’ right for local
authorities or any affordable housing provider acting on their behalf to buy
up to a set proportion of on-site units at a discounted price, broadly
equivalent to build costs. The proportion would be set nationally

Proposal 22 - More freedom could be given to local authorities over
how they spend the Infrastructure Levy

rather than on site provision. In Staffordshire Moorlands, on site seems to
be a welcomed by developers given the uncertainly of the housing market.
As with proposal 19, concern that the levy will not provide sufficient
funding in low viability areas.
Would local authorities have to agree FVA or agree development value?
The Cost of having these independently assessed would be significant.
Flexibility is fine in principle but may lead to difficult decisions being made
in terms of priorities and possible conflict with the county council (see
proposal 19)

As with CIL, up to 25% of income to be spent within neighbourhoods where
it is raised.

Page 133

In addition to infrastructure and affordable housing, income could be spent
on “improving services or reducing council tax”
Local authorities to consider ring fencing for affordable housing.
Alternatively, the permitted uses of the Levy could remain focused on
infrastructure and affordable housing
Proposal 23 - a comprehensive resources and skills strategy
for the planning sector will be rolled out to support the implementation
of reforms
Training, including on digitization of planning system.
Planning fees continue to be set nationally but would support enforcement
and the preparation of local plans/ design codes (currently funded by
separate council budgets)
Reform of regulations to bring them up to date and reduce costs for local
authorities

This will be essential given the shift in emphasis to the preparation of, and
application of, design codes in particular.
Greater flexibility of the use of planning fees could be positive but local
plans and design codes funded by developers may lead to public mistrust in
the process.
Regulatory reform is long over due. Covid-19 has already brought about
more cost effective means of working which could be carried forward into
future reforms e.g. less emphasis on the availability of paper copies of
documents.

A new performance framework for improvements across all planning
functions with early intervention if problems emerge with individual
authorities.
Proposal 24 – strengthen enforcement powers and sanctions
More powers to address intentional unauthorised development, consider
higher fines, and look to ways of supporting more enforcement activity.
Consideration of measures if the Environment Agency’s flood risk advice is
not followed.

It is noted that there are no consultation questions relating to this
proposal.
Principle of stronger enforcement powers is to be welcomed. Concern
regarding resourcing of this when emphasis within planning teams is
always around meeting Government targets for applications. (See proposal
6)

Page 134

Proposal provides little detail.

Agenda Item 12.1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 135

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 143

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 151

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 153

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 159

This page is intentionally left blank

